
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN
MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR
MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL
OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO
ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, MARCH 15, 2016 - 10:00 A.M.
             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF

ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION
 

 

2. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the
use of State of Arizona Procurement Office
Contract No. ADSPO13-054359 with
Blackstone Security Services, Inc. whereby the
contractor will provide armed security
manpower for the safety of the public and
employees at the Payson Courthouse in the
amount of $83,081 for the period of April 2,
2016, to April 1, 2017.  (Jeff
Hessenius/Steve Sanders)

Approved

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize
the advertisement of Invitation for Bid
No. 021616-1 for the purchase of up to
five, new full size, 4 door, 4x4, SSVs (special
service vehicles) for the Gila County Sheriff's
Office.  (Jeff Hessenius/Steve Sanders)

Authorized

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to accept the
Citizens' Petition to begin the process to
establish Stageline Road and Singletree Lane
as primitive roads.  (Steve Sanders)

Accepted

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action for the public Sold



D.   Information/Discussion/Action for the public
sale of a portion of W. Cocopah Lane, which is
adjacent to Lot 14, Geronimo Estates Unit
One, north of Payson as shown on Official Map
No. 241, and to accept the bid in the amount
of $52 from Janet Mielke for that portion of W.
Cocopah Lane.  (Steve Sanders)

Sold

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action for the public
sale of a portion of Elaine Way, which is
adjacent to Lot 9, Christopher Creek Haven,
Plat Five, east of Payson as shown on Official
Map No. 448, and to accept the bid in the
amount of $144 from Jeffrey Yoder for that
portion of Elaine Way.  (Steve Sanders)

Sold

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Agreement No. 030116 between Gila County
and the Gila County Cattle Growers
Association; pursuant to A.R.S. §11-254.04, to
find that to assist in the annual yearling
auction/sale is an economic development
activity because it will assist in the creation or
retention of jobs or will otherwise improve or
enhance the economic welfare of the
inhabitants of Gila County; and, to authorize
Public Works to supply requested tent, tables,
chairs, and equipment with Gila County
certified operators for the Gila County Cattle
Growers Association's annual yearling
auction/sale between April 25, 2016, through
May 2, 2016.  (Steve Sanders)

Approved

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Resolution No. 16-03-01 designating Randall
Place as a public roadway and accepting said
road into the Gila County Maintained
Roadway System.  (Steve Sanders)

Adopted

 



 

H.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Gila County's response to the Survey of
Counties Land Management and Conditions
for submittal to the Arizona Transfer of
Federally Managed Lands Committee.  
(Jacque Sanders)

Approved

 

I.   Information/Discussion/Action to consider a
sealed bid for the purchase of Assessor's tax
parcel number 206-10-104.  (Don McDaniel)

Sold

 

3. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any
matter on the Consent Agenda will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and
discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any
member of the Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of a request submitted by the
University of Arizona Gila County Cooperative
Extension 4-H Program and the Globe FFA
Program to waive fees for the use of the Gila
County Fairgrounds facilities for their 2016
activities.

Approved

 

B.   Approval of a request submitted by the Gila
County Rodeo Committee to waive fees for the
use of the Gila County Fairgrounds Rodeo
Arena for the Copper Dust Stampede Rodeo on
May 6-7, 2016, and the Exhibit Hall on April
30, 2016, for the Sponsors' Dinner.

Approved

 

C.   Approval of a request submitted by the 2016
Junior Class of Globe High School to waive
fees for the use of the Gila County
Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall for the School's
Junior/Senior Prom to be held on April 23,

Approved



2016.
 

D.   Approval of a request submitted by the Greater
Grace Fellowship/Classic Celebration's
non-profit organization to use the Payson
Courthouse Complex grounds (parking lot) for
a "Memorialfest" craft show on May 28-30,
2016, and "Autumnfest" craft show on October
1-2, 2016.

Approved

 

E.   Approval of a Special Event Liquor License
application submitted by the Lion's Club of
Globe, Arizona, Inc. to serve liquor at a fund
raising event on April 16, 2016.

Approved

 

F.   Authorization of the Chairman's signature on
the Quit Claim Deed for the sale of Assessor's
tax parcel number 206-22-073 to Joshua
Sulwer and Savannah Jewell.

Authorized

 

G.   Authorization of the Chairman's signature on
the Quit Claim Deed for the sale of Assessor's
tax parcel number 304-14-004-G to Hannelore
R. Inman.

Authorized

 

H.   Approval of changes to Gila County Policy No.
BOS-HRS-610 - Disciplinary Action regarding
disciplinary actions in the Sheriff's Office.

Approved

 

I.   Approval of changes to Gila County Policy No.
BOS-HRS-625 - Personnel Commission
regarding Adult and Juvenile Probation
statutes and the Superior Court Merit Rules.

Approved

 

J.   Approval for the Board of Supervisors to Approved



J.   Approval for the Board of Supervisors to
appoint, reappoint or acknowledge members of
the following boards, commissions or
committees:  1) Appoint Jonathan Barber, as
a citizen and head of the merit system
(Personnel Commission) for Gila County, as
follows:  Public Safety Personnel Retirement
System Local Board for a term ending
12/31/19; Correctional Officers Retirement
Plan (CORP) Local Board for Sheriff's Office
(S.O.) Dispatchers for a term ending
12/31/17; and, CORP Local Board for S.O.
Detention Officers and Non-Uniformed Officers
for a term ending 12/31/17; 2) Reappoint 
Gary Andress as a citizen to the CORP Local
Board for S.O. Dispatchers and the CORP
Local Board for S.O. Detention Officers and
Non-Uniformed Officers retroactive to 1/1/16
through 12/31/19; and, 3) Acknowledge 
Erich Kenney as an elected member of the
CORP Local Board for S.O. Detention Officers
and Non-Uniformed Officers for a term
beginning 10/6/15 through 12/31/17.

Approved

 

K.   Acknowledgment of the January 2016 monthly
activity report submitted by the Clerk of the
Superior Court's Office.

Acknowledged

 

L.   Acknowledgment of the February 2016
monthly activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

M.   Acknowledgment of the January 2016 monthly
activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

N.   Acknowledgment of the January 2016 monthly Acknowledged



N.   Acknowledgment of the January 2016 monthly
activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable's Office.

Acknowledged

 

O.   Acknowledgment of the February 2016
monthly activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Constable's Office.

Acknowledged

 

P.   Approval of the February 23, 2016, March 1,
2016, and March 4, 2016, Board of
Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Approved

 

Q.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000
which have been approved by the County
Manager for the weeks of February 15, 2015,
through February 19, 2016; and, February 22,
2016, through February 26, 2016.

Acknowledged

 

4. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is
held for public benefit to allow individuals to
address the Board of Supervisors on any issue
within the jurisdiction of the Board of
Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona
Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the
conclusion of an open call to the public,
individual members of the Board of
Supervisors may respond to criticism made by
those who have addressed the Board, may ask
staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further
discussion and decision at a future date.

No Comments

 

5. At any time during this meeting pursuant to Presented



5. At any time during this meeting pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of
Supervisors and the County Manager may
present a brief summary of current events.  No
action may be taken on information presented.

Presented

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING



   

ARF-3630     Regular Agenda Item      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 and

2016-2017
Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

04-02-16 to
04-01-17

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval to use State of Arizona Contract No. ADSPO13-054359 with Blackstone
Security to provide security to the Payson Courthouse.

Background Information
On March 1, 2011, Superior Court Judge Peter Cahill and County Manager Don
McDaniel requested that a Courthouse Security Committee be formed in order to
improve Courthouse security.  The team met on several occasions to discuss the
current and future state of Gila County security.  The team identified and addressed
important issues such as employees, vendors, issuance of badges to prospective jurors,
elevators, and Courthouse doors.  The completed planning of the surveillance phase,
and the implementation portion of the project was handed off to the Public Works
Division.  The Globe Courthouse has already contracted with Blackstone Security
Services, so it is deemed reasonable to keep the same security company in the Payson
Courthouse.

On October 13, 2015, Gila County utilized the State contract to procure security
services for the Payson Courthouse for a temporary period of six months to see if this
approach would work out satisfactorily at the Payson Courthouse.  The square foot
constraints at the Payson Courthouse could not accommodate the X-ray or
magnetometer machines, which limits the armed guards to using metal wand detectors
for screening people.  Additionally, the guards check purse contents and packages
brought in by the public.  The security services provided by Blackstone Security
Services, Inc. at the Payson Courthouse has worked out well.  Staff wishes to procure
their services for an additional year.

Evaluation
The State of Arizona has awarded Armed/Unarmed Security Services contracts to



The State of Arizona has awarded Armed/Unarmed Security Services contracts to
seven contractors that successfully submitted bids in response to the State’s
Solicitation No. ADSPO13-00003094.  The State formed an Evaluation Committee to
review the bidder responses and evaluate the proposals.  Based on the evaluation
performed by the Committee, and on information gathered by Gila County staff
performing reference checks, staff has determined it would benefit the County by
utilizing one of the contracts awarded by the State.

Once the security contract has been approved, all public and non-County employees
will be required to enter the Courthouse through the main entrance.  The goal of the
County is to have two armed guards posted at the main entrance of the Payson
Courthouse, from 7:30 A.M. to 5:30 P.M., Monday through Friday, excluding holidays. 
The annual cost to the County from Blackstone Security Services, Inc., reflects the
hourly rates for which the State has contracted with Blackstone Security Services,
Inc.  The annual cost to the County for armed security guard service will be $83,081. 
This annual cost does reflect the ten holidays the County facilities will not be open for
business.

Conclusion
Gila County is satisfied with the security services that Blackstone Security Service has
provided to the Payson Courthouse for the last six months.  We would like to continue
to use their services at the Payson Courthouse, through the State of Arizona Contract
NO. ADSPO13-054359, for an additional year.

Gila County is a member of ProcureAZ, the State of Arizona’s procurement agency for
cooperative purchasing.  By using State of Arizona Contract No.
ADSPO13-054359 with Blackstone Security Services, Inc., it will save the County both
time and money for a rate that has already been established through the State of
Arizona bidding process.

Recommendation
The Finance Division Director and the Public Works Division Director recommend that
the Board of Supervisors approve the use of State of Arizona Procurement Office
Contract No. ADSPO13-054359 with Blackstone Security Services, Inc. to provide
armed security manpower for the safety of the public and employees in the Payson
Courthouse.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the use of State of Arizona Procurement
Office Contract No. ADSPO13-054359 with Blackstone Security Services, Inc. whereby
the contractor will provide armed security manpower for the safety of the public and
employees at the Payson Courthouse in the amount of $83,081 for the period of April
2, 2016, to April 1, 2017.  (Jeff Hessenius/Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Contract Agreement Form April 2016 to April 2017
Payson Courthouse Quote April 2016 to April 2017
Contract Agreement Form Oct. 2015 to April 2016



Payson Courthouse Quote Oct 2015 to April 2016
Contract No. ADSPO13-054359 - Blackstone Security
Amendment No. 1-ADSPO
Amendment No. 2-ADSPO





Blackstone Security Services, Inc.  
  2400 West Dunlap Avenue, Suite 225  
  Phoenix, Arizona  85021  

  
  Office: (602) 265-6160   Fax: 
(602) 265-6170   
www.blackstonesecurity.com  
  

“The secret to our success is in our people”  
     AZ DPS License #1002987  

  
February 24, 2016 

  

Ms. Jeannie Sgroi  

Contracts Support Specialist  

Gila County Finance Department  

1400 East Ash Street  

Globe, Arizona  85501  

  

RE: 2016-2017 Quote for Court Security Screening Services in Payson 

  

Dear Ms. Sgroi, 

  

Please accept this correspondence as Blackstone Security Services quote to provide the 
above referenced services.    

  

I have taken into consideration the ten (10) holidays that will not require coverage and 
that the hours of operation shall be 7:30 AM to 5:30 PM Monday through Friday. It is 
further understood that the service to be provided is Armed Security Services.  I also 
understand that the County will be riding on the State Contract ADSPO13-054359, 
Security Services.    

  

Utilizing the rate dictated by the state contract and calculating the number of man hours 
required from 4/2/16 through 4/1/17, Blackstone respectfully submits the below listed quote: 

Two hundred and fifty one working days will be $83,081.00 

  

Blackstone understands that the days and hours of coverage are subject to change 
depending on the needs of the County.  

  

As always, should you require anything further, please feel free to contact me at your 
convenience.  

  

Sincerely,  

 

  

Dan Swindall  

President    

http://www.blackstonesecurity.com/
http://www.blackstonesecurity.com/






 
     AZ DPS License #1002987 

 
October 12, 2015 
 
Ms. Jeannie Sgroi 
Contracts Support Specialist 
Gila County Finance Department 
1400 East Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona  85501 
 
RE: Quote for Court Security Screening Services in Payson
 
Dear Ms. Sgroi ,
 
Please accept this correspondence as Blackstone Security Services quote to 
provide the above referenced services.   
 
I have taken into consideration the seven (7) holidays that will not require 
coverage and that the hours of operation shall be 7:30 AM to 5:30 PM Monday 
through Friday. It is further understood that the service to be provided is Armed 
Security Services.  I also understand that the County will be riding on the State 
Contract ADSPO13-054359, Security Services.   
 
Utilizing the rate dictated by the state contract and calculating the number of 

man hours required from 10/12/15 through 4/1/16, Blackstone respectfully submits the 

below listed quote:
One hundred and eighteen working days will be $39,058.00
 
Blackstone understands that the days and hours of coverage are subject to change 
depending on the needs of the County. 

 
As always, should you require anything further, please feel free to contact me at 
your convenience. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Dan Swindall 
President   

Blackstone Security Services, Inc. 
  2400 West Dunlap Avenue, Suite 225 
  Phoenix, Arizona  85021 
 

  Office: (602) 265-6160 
  Fax: (602) 265-6170 

  www.blackstonesecurity.com 
 

“The secret to our success is in our people” 

http://www.blackstonesecurity.com/






































































Contract Amendment State of Arizona 

State Procurement Office 

100 N. 15TH  Avenue, Suite 201 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 

;011 rs 

Contract No.: ADSPO13-054359 
PAGE 
1 OF 1 

Amendment No.: Amendment 1 

CONTRACTOR: 

Blackstone Security Services, Inc. 
Daniel L. Swindall 
2400 West Dunlap Ave 
Suite 225 
Phoenix, AZ 85021 

Email: dan@blackstonesecurity.com  

CONTACT: Dan Swindall 

STATE AGENCY: 

AZ Department of Administration 

State Procurement Office 
100 N. 15th  Avenue 
Suite 201 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

Email: procure@azdoa.gov  

CONTACT: Cindy Tucker 
PHONE: (602)265-6160 PHONE: (602)364-1347 
EMAIL: dan@blackstonesecurity.com  EMAIL: cindy.tucker@azdoa.gov  

Armed/Unarmed Security Services 

In accordance with Uniform Terms and Conditions, Paragraph 5.1, Amendments, on Page 14 of 47, the 
aforementioned contract is hereby amended for an additional one (1) year term as follows: 

1.1 The above referenced contract shall be extended from August 15, 2014 to August 14, 2015. 

1.2 All other terms and conditions remain the same. 

This Contract Amendment is not binding against the State 
of the Contractor and then accepted in writing by an authorized 

of Arizona unless signed by an authorized representative 
representative of the State. 

Contractor hereby acknowledges receipt and 
understanding of the above amendment. 

The above referenced contract amendment is hereby 
executed this date by the State. 

■ 
0.4744A. 1.. Le.414 	J444 3, 2014 

\ 	44 

	

tii 	 ) 

	

1.....Alipaillil 	_Ilv. 	..- --U Nt 020  .  A _.  .. 	A.  _ 

	

_r, 	,_ 
'-'  •  na 	 - 	 Date 

. 	 . 

TDA..,)1V, L L •  SI,..)  I  ,„  141\ geSIDOSS 

Signature 	 Date 

Cynthia L Tucker, Senior Procurement Officer 
/ 

Printed/Typed Name and Title Printed/Typed Name and Title 





   

ARF-3637     Regular Agenda Item      2. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 and

2016-2017
Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

04-19-2016 to
04-18-2017

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Advertise Invitation for Bid No. 021616-1 - Purchase up to Five New, Full
Size, 4 Door, 4x4, SSVs (Special Service Vehicle).

Background Information
The advertisement of Invitation for Bid No. 021616-1 for new SSVs would allow the
County Fleet Department the ability to receive proposals from automobile suppliers
and have the option to purchase up to five new units, during a one-year period, if
necessary.

Evaluation
The vehicles mentioned in the Invitation for Bids may be needed in the Sheriff's
Office fleet in the coming year.  These vehicles would replace units with high mileage,
that have become too expensive to operate or are inefficient, or vehicles that have been
damaged and are no longer operable. 

The request for a price quote on a vehicle does not mean the purchase of the vehicle,
only the ability to purchase if the need arises.

Conclusion
The vehicles that would be purchased from this Invitation for Bids would be assigned
to the Sheriff's Office.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director and the Finance Director recommend that the
Board of Supervisors approve the advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 021616-1 for
the purchase of up to five new fleet vehicles as specified.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Invitation for Bid



Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Invitation for Bid
No. 021616-1 for the purchase of up to five, new full size, 4 door, 4x4, SSVs (special
service vehicles) for the Gila County Sheriff's Office.  (Jeff Hessenius/Steve
Sanders)

Attachments
Request to Advertise
Invitation For Bid 021616-1





 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

NOTICE OF INVITATION FOR BID 
 
 

BID NO. 021616-1 
 
 

UP TO FIVE (5) NEW FULL SIZE 4 DOOR 4X4 SSV 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

Tommie C. Martin, Vice Chairman 
John D. Marcanti, Member 

 
 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
Don E. McDaniel Jr. 

 

 

 

 



1 

GILA COUNTY 
PROCUREMENT GROUP 

NOTICE OF INVITATION FOR BID 

SOLICITATION NUMBER 
021616-1 

1400 E. Ash Street 
Globe,  Arizona 

85501 

BID DUE DATE:      Monday, April 04, 2016  TIME:  4:00 PM 

DESCRIPTION:    Purchase up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV 

Bid Opening Location: GILA COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
ATTN: JEANNIE SGROI 
GUERRERO COMPLEX  
1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 

Bid Submittal Location:  GILA COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ  85501 

In accordance with A.R.S. §41-2533, Invitation for Bid for the materials and services specified will be received 
by the Gila County Procurement Group at the above specified location until the time and date cited. 

Request for submittals after the specified date and time to the Procurement Group shall not be considered.  
To receive bid documents contact the Procurement Group at (928) 402-8612 or click on the following link to 
the County website . http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php  

Additional instructions for preparing a bid are provided on pages 4-6 of the bid documents to Offerors as 
contained within the solicitation. 

The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all bids, or to accept any bid, or to waive any 
informality in any bid, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila County.  All 
procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the 
Gila County Procurement Code.  A copy of the Code is available for review in the Deputy Clerk of the Board’s 
office, Globe, AZ. 

Arizona Silver Belt advertisement dates:   March 23, 2016 and March 30, 2016 

BIDDERS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO CAREFULLY READ THE ENTIRE SOLICITATION 

Designated Department:   Gila County Fleet Management 
Type of contract: Term 
Term of Contract: Twelve Months  
Phone Number: (928) 200-1580 

Signed:  _____________________________________________________ Date:  ________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

Signed:  _____________________________________________________ Date:  ________________ 
  Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 

  for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php


2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

     CONTENT PAGE 

Solicitation ............................................................................................................................. 1 

Scope of Work ........................................................................................................................ 3 

Exhibit “A” Instructions to Vendors ...................................................................................... 4-6 

Preparation of Sealed Bid ........................................................................................................... 4 
Amendments ........................................................................................................................... 4-5 
Inquiries ...................................................................................................................................... 5 
Late Bids ..................................................................................................................................... 5 
Submittal Bid Format ............................................................................................................... 5-6 

General Terms and Conditions ............................................................................................. 7-8 

Award of Contract ...................................................................................................................... 7 
Protests ....................................................................................................................................... 7 
Laws & Ordinances ..................................................................................................................... 8 

Exhibit “B” Contract Award Agreement ............................................................................... 8-10 

Overcharges by Antitrust Violations ........................................................................................... 8 
Authority to Contract ................................................................................................................. 8 
Contract Amendments ............................................................................................................... 8 
Contract Default ...................................................................................................................... 8-9 
Right of Assurance ...................................................................................................................... 9 
Costs & Payments ....................................................................................................................... 9 
Co-op Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement ..................................................................... 9 
Cancellation of County Contracts ............................................................................................... 9 
Termination of Contract ........................................................................................................ 9-10 

Exhibit “C” Minimum Product Specifications and Information ........................................... 11-12 

Section 1.0 General Purpose .................................................................................................... 11 
Section 2.0 Bid Pricing .............................................................................................................. 11 
Section 3.0 Order and Delivery ............................................................................................ 11-12 

Exhibit “D” Qualification and Certification Form ..................................................................... 13 

Price Sheet ....................................................................................................................... 14-18 

No Collusion Affidavit ............................................................................................................ 19 

Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance .................................................................................. 20 

Bidders Checklist and Addenda Acknowledgment .................................................................. 21 

Offer Page  ............................................................................................................................ 22 

Acceptance of Offer Page  ...................................................................................................... 23 



3 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV 

GENERAL SCOPE 

It is the intent of this solicitation to award a contract for the purchase of up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 
4x4 SSV, for Gila County. 

The County may choose to award this contract as a whole, or make multiple awards, depending on what is 
deemed to be in the County’s best interest considering price, specifications, and delivery date.  The request 
for price of an item does not guarantee a purchase but merely provides the County with the option if the 
need arises. 

See attached:  Exhibit “C” Pages 11-12, and Pages 14-18 as specified on Price Sheet for total price being 
proposed. 

Vendors who agree to provide the Minimum Bid Specifications for this Invitation for Bid shall be considered 
for award. 



4 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV  

INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS 

IMPORTANT:  EXHIBIT “A”, INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS AND EXHIBIT “B”, VENDORS AWARD AGREEMENT 
ARE BASIC CONTENT TO GILA COUNTY BID PACKAGES.  INDIVIDUAL BIDS MAY REQUIRE DIFFERENT 
LANGUAGE FOR INSTRUCTIONS AND AWARD AGREEMENTS.  WHERE APPLICABLE, SUCH CHANGES WILL 
APPEAR IN EXHIBIT “C”, MINIMUM PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION AND TAKE PRECEDENCE 
OVER THE LANGUAGE APPEARING IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B”. 

EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS 

Preparation of Sealed Bid 

A. Sealed Bids will be received by the Gila County Finance Department, from vendors, to deliver the 
product(s), goods and services contained to establish a contract for specified locations within Gila 
County.  The County seeks sealed bids only from qualified, experienced vendors able to provide 
services which are, in all respects, responsive to the specifications.  All bids shall be on the forms 
provided in this Invitation for Bid package.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required.  

B. Before submitting its bid, each vendor shall familiarize itself with the Scope of Work, laws, 
regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully correlate its 
observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the expense and 
difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a bid will constitute a 
representation of compliance by the vendor.  There will be no subsequent financial adjustment, 
other than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

C. Vendors must complete all forms provided in this Invitation for Bid package in full, original 
signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the Bid and to be submitted at the time of bid, 
and made a part of this contract.  The County will use the Bid, and Qualification and Certification 
Form, in evaluating the capacity of vendor(s) to perform the Scope of Services as set forth in the 
Contract.  Failure of any Vendor to complete and submit the Price Sheet and Signature and Offer 
Page at time and place of opening may be grounds for automatic disqualification of the vendor(s) 
from further consideration. 

D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the Bid must also be legibly printed below the 
signature. Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 

E. The full name of each person or company interested in the Invitation for Bids shall be listed on the 
Bid. 

F. No alterations in Bids, or in the printed forms therefore, by erasures, interpolations, or otherwise 
will be acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the vendor; if initialed, the 
County may require the vendor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

Amendments 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this Invitation for Bids must be acknowledged by all 
Vendors in the following manner: 



5 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV 

Instructions to Vendors continued… 

1. Completion of the Bidder Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment form, page 21.

Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a bid being rejected as non-
responsive. If no addenda have been issued, please indicate so by writing “Not Applicable” in the space 
provided under #1. The Vendor Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment form must be signed and dated. 

Inquiries 

Any questions related to this IFB must be directed to those whose names appear on the Notice.  Questions 
should be submitted in writing when time permits.  The Gila County Supervisors, at their sole discretion, may 
require all questions be submitted in writing.  Any correspondence related to an Invitation for Bids should 
refer to the appropriate Invitation for Bids number, page, and paragraph number.  However, the Vendor(s) 
must not place the IFB number on the outside of an envelope containing questions since such an envelope 
may be identified as a sealed Bid and may not be opened until after the official IFB due date and time.  
Questions received less than five (5) working days prior to the date for opening Bids will be answered only if 
time permits.   Only questions answered by formal written addenda will be binding.  Oral and other 
interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 

Late Bids 

Any bid received later than the date and time specified on Notice for Sealed Bids shall not be considered. 

Submittal Bid Format: 

It is requested that One (1) Original and One (1) copy (2 TOTAL) with original signatures on both sets of the 
Qualification and Certification Form, Price Sheets, No Collusion Form, Legal AZ Workers Act Compliance 
Form, Bidders Checklist and Addenda Acknowledgment Form, and Offer Page shall be submitted on the 
forms and in the format specified in the Invitation for Bid.  The County will not be liable for any cost 
incident to the preparation of Bid, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-right infringements, etc.  It 
is permissible to copy these forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not be considered. 

1. By signature in the offer section of the Offer and Acceptance page, Vendor certifies:

A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
B. The Vendor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 

economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or 
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition and cost of 
supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any political subdivision, State, 
County, City, Town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by the Vendor(s) awarded the 
contract to provide the same services, at the same prices stated in the bid.  Delivery charges may 
differentiate depending on geographical location. 



6 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV 

Instructions to Vendors continued… 

2. Bids submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving bids at the place
and prior to the time designated for receipts of Bids.

3. The County is not responsible for any Vendor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an offer
confers no right to the Vendor unless the Vendor discovers and corrects such errors prior to the Bid
deadline.

All bids shall be submitted in a sealed envelope: 

 Minimum of Two (2) copies with original signatures shall be provided by the Vendor;

 The words “Invitation for Bid” with Title “Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4x4 SSV”,
“Bid No. 021616-1”, “April 04, 2016” and “4:00 PM” shall be written on the face of the envelope;

 The Vendor shall assume full responsibility for timely delivery at the location designated in the
Notice.



7 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4x4 SSV 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Award of Contract 

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award any Bid by individual line item, by
group of line items or as total, or any part thereof, whichever is deemed to be in the best interest,
most advantageous of the County of Gila.

a. Notwithstanding any or other provisions of the Bid, the County reserves the right to:
1. Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or
2. Reject any or all Bids; or portions thereof; or
3. Reissue a Request for Bid.

2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the County contracts to the
lowest responsive and responsible Vendor(s).  To ensure that all Vendors are experienced,
reasonably equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a determination
of responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to contract award.

3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the Bid of any Vendor(s) who has previously failed to
perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior Bid for furnishing and installing
materials similar in nature.

4. All submitted forms provided in this Invitation for Bids will be reviewed by the Gila County Board of
Supervisors.

5. Those Vendor(s) who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified and
whose Bids are most advantageous to the County may be invited to appear before the Board for an
oral review.

6. The apparent successful Vendor(s) shall sign and file with the County, within ten (10) days after
Notice of Intent to Award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract.

Protests 

Only other Vendors who have submitted a bid under this IFB have the right to protest.  A protest of an award 
must be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing 
and must include the following: 

A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant 

documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash Street, 
Globe, Arizona  85501. 



8 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV 

General Terms & Conditions continued… 

Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  Firm shall maintain 
in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and permits required for the operation of the business 
conducted by the Firm.  The Firm shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable federal regulations under the act. 

EXHIBIT “B” CONTRACT AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as the contract agreement to any Vendor, their agents, subcontractors or 
representatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the County, by submitting Bids to this or any 
other solicitation requiring sealed bids, does hereby agree to the following provisions.  Proof of acceptance 
of these provisions will be the Vendor’s signature(s) appearing on page 22, Vendors Offer Page, and Exhibit 
“D” Vendors Qualification and Certification form page 13.  This Contract shall include the Invitation for Bids 
No. 021616-1 and all exhibits attached to it, including but not limited to the Qualification and Certification 
Form, Price Sheets, No Collusion Affidavit, Legal AZ Workers Act Compliance Form, Bidders Checklist and 
Addenda Acknowledgment Form, and Offer Page which are all incorporated into this agreement by this 
reference. 

Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The County maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by the 
purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Vendor hereby assigns to the County any and all 
claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 

Authority to Contract 

This contract shall be based upon the Invitation for Bids No. 021616-1, issued by the County, and the offer 
submitted by the Vendor in response to the IFB.  The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, 
conditions, specifications and other requirements set forth within the text of the IFB which is incorporated by 
this reference into this agreement. The county reserves the right to clarify any contractual terms with the 
concurrence of the Vendor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, as determined by the 
County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.  The contract shall contain the 
entire agreement between Gila County and the Vendor relating to these requirements. The Contract shall 
prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, bids, negotiations, purchase orders, or master 
agreement in any form.  The contract activity is issued under the authority of the Gila County Manager, after 
the Gila County Board of Supervisors approves the award.  No alteration of any portion of the contract, any 
items or services awarded, or any other agreement that is based upon this contract may be made without 
express written approval of the Gila County Board of Supervisors in the form of an official contract 
amendment.  Any attempt to alter any documents on the part of the Vendor or any agency is a violation of 
the County Procurement Code.  Any such action is subject to the legal and contractual remedies available to 
the County inclusive, but not limited to, contract cancellation, suspension or debarment of the Vendor. 

Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Vendor. 

Contract Default 

A. The County, by written notice of default to the Vendor, may terminate the whole or any part of this 
contract in any one of the following circumstances: 



9 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV 

Exhibit “B” Contract Award Agreement continued… 

1. If  the Vendor fails to make delivery of the supplies or to perform the services within the times
specified; or

2. If the Vendor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to remedy
the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice.

B. In the event the County terminates this contract in whole or part, the County may procure supplies 
or services similar to those terminated, and the Vendor shall be liable to the County for any excess 
costs for such similar supplies or services. 

Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, 
the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform.  In the 
event that a demand is made and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party 
may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 

Costs and Payments 

Payments shall comply with the requirements of A.R.S. Title 35 and 41, Net 30 days.  Upon receipt and 
acceptance of goods and services, the Vendor shall submit a complete and accurate invoice for payment.  

IRS W9 Form:  In order to receive payment the Vendor shall have a current IRS W9 Form on file with the 
County unless not required by law. 

Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and 
towns of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve timely 
acquisition and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The vendor(s) to whom this contract is awarded 
may be requested by other parties of said interactive purchasing agreements to extend to those parties the 
right to purchase supplies, equipment and services provided by the vendor under this contract, pursuant to 
the terms and conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules 
and regulations of the respective entity and the approval of the Vendor. 

Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 

Termination of Contract 

The County, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time, or by giving thirty (30) days 
written notice to you.  The County at its convenience, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in 
whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the County shall be liable only for payment under the 
payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted material received by the County 
before the effective date of termination. 

The County reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the Vendor(s) 
to carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The County will issue a written ten (10) day 
notice of default to Vendor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 



10 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV  

Exhibit “B” Contract Award Agreement continued… 

1. In the opinion of the County, the Vendor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions or
services and specifications required in the contract.

2. In the opinion of the County, the Vendor attempts to impose on the County material products, or
workmanship, which is of unacceptable quality.

3. Vendor fails to furnish the required service or product within the time stipulated in the contract.
4. In the opinion of the County, the Vendor fails to make progress in the performance of the

requirements of the contract or give the County a positive indication that Vendor will not, or cannot,
perform to the requirements of the contract.

Each payment obligation of the County created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of County, State 
and Federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.  If funds are 
not allocated by the County and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the contract 
period for the service may be terminated by the County at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  The County shall notify the Vendor at the earliest possible time which service may be affected by a 
shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the County in the event this provision is exercised, and the 
County shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of 
termination under this paragraph. 

General 

After receipt of all bids, each submittal shall be screened to determine if any shall be deemed non-
responsive.  Unsigned bids, unacknowledged Addenda, incomplete bids, non-conformance with mandatory 
requirements, etc., may result in the determination of non-responsive. 



11 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV  

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 

EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS FOR:   021616-1 

Purpose:  It is the intent of Gila County to establish, by this Invitation for Bids, a contract to purchase up to 
Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4x4 SSV. This Invitation for Bid No. 021616-1 including the Qualification and 
Certification Form, Price Sheets, No Collusion Form, Legal AZ Workers Act Compliance Form, Checklist and 
Addenda Acknowledgment Form, and Offer Page constitutes the entire Bid package and by this reference is 
hereby incorporated into this agreement. 

Note:  This specification is intended to describe the type, size, and quality, which will best meet the demands 
of the using department.  It is NOT intended to favor any one brand or make.  The mention of brand names 
or components merely serves to specify the quality or general type required. 

SECTION 1.0 

General:   

1.1 All product specifications are minimum.  Vendor must provide product specification sheet. 
1.2 Vendor should have adequate manufacturing or stock facilities to serve the needs of Gila County. 

1.3 All bids must represent the entire package.   

1.4 The parties specifically understand and agree that the quantities used for bidding purposes are 

estimates of County needs and in no event shall the County be obligated to purchase the exact 

quantities of any item set forth in the bid.  The County does not guarantee any maximum or 

minimum amounts of purchase. 

SECTION 2.0 

Bid Pricing: 

2.1 The Vendor shall submit the bid in the form of a firm unit price for the contract period.  Initial  

contract period is twelve (12) months.  Vendor shall incorporate all freight, profit, and discount 

into their price.  The exception will be any price reduction, which will be applied to the contract 

immediately upon the Vendor’s or Gila County’s discovery of any such price reduction.   

2.2 The term of the contract shall commence upon award and shall remain in effect for a period of 

one (1) year, unless terminated, cancelled or extended as otherwise provided herein.  

SECTION 3.0 

Ordering and Delivery: 

3.1 ORDERING:  Gila County does not warrant the order quantity of any item prior to actual need.  Gila 

County may re-order item as it becomes necessary or based on the required needs within the 

County during the term of this contract. 

3.2 PRODUCT DELIVERY Location:  Gila County Shop, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, AZ.  The Board of 

Supervisors may designate other or alternate delivery sites at any time during the term of the 

contract.  These needs may be based on, but not limited to, seasonal, emergency, historical usage 

data.  



12 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV 

Exhibit “C” Minimum Specifications  continued… 

  3.3     DELIVERY TIME: Vehicles must be delivered no later than 10 weeks of receipt by Vendor of County 

Purchase Order.  Failure to provide delivery within this time period may result in termination of 

this contract and award to the next lowest, responsible bidder. 

  3.4   Vendor shall retain title and control of all goods until they are delivered and the contract of  

coverage has been completed.  All risks of transportation and all related charges shall be the 

responsibility of the Vendor.  All claims for visible or concealed damage shall be filed by the 

Vendor.  The County will assist the Vendor in arranging for inspection. 



13 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV 

QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM 

EXHIBIT “D” VENDORS QUALIFICATION AND REFERENCE LIST 

PURPOSE 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of 
Vendors under consideration for final award.  The information may or may not be a determining factor in 
award. 
CONTACT NUMBER 021616-1 Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4x4 SSV 
The applicant submitting this Bid warrants the following: 

1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Vendor:

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

2. Has Vendor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract?
________ Yes   ________No.  If “Yes”, give details including the date, the contracting agency, and
the reason Vendor failed to perform in the narrative part of this Contract.

3. Has Vendor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from
competing for a contract?  ________ Yes   ________ No.  If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the
contracting agency, the reasons for the Vendors disqualifications, and whether this disqualification
remains in effect in the narrative part of this Contract.

4. Has a contracting agency ever terminated a contract with the Vendor (under your firm’s present or
any previous name) prior to end of contract period?  ________ Yes   ________No.  If “Yes”, give
details including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons offer was terminated in the
narrative part of this Contract.

5. Vendor must also provide at least the following information:
a. A Cost Bid shall be submitted on the Price Sheet, attached hereon and made a full part of this

contract by this reference.
b. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information.

___________________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 

___________________________________________ 
Printed Name 

___________________________________________ 
Title 



14 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV 

PRICE SHEET 
Complete and return this form for the total price being proposed.  Attach any pertinent cost breakdowns, 
subtotals of component costs, etc. to this bid pricing page. 

DESCRIPTION:  Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4x4 SSV    (Build Sheet Must Accompany Bid) 

Vehicle Year, Make, & Model:  _____________________________________________________________ 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 

Purchase Up to five New, Full Size, 4 Door, 4x4, SSV 

MEETS MINIIMUM 
SPECIFICATIONS 

YES         NO 

Exterior:   Solid White 

Interior:    Light Color 

 Cloth Covered Front Buckets Seats without Console 

 Vinyl Covered Rear Bench Seat 

Power Features:    Door Locks  

  Windows 

   Mirrors 

 Driver Seat 

  Steering 

Keyless Entry 

Cruise Control 

Tilt Steering Wheel 

AM  FM Clock (CD) Radio Stereo 

6 Cylinder Gas Engine 

4 Wheel Drive 4x4 

Automatic Transmission 

Locking Differential 

Air Conditioning – in Front and Rear 

Deep Tinted Windows 

Front Tow Hooks  

Trailer Tow Package with Receiver Hitch 

Skid Plate Package 

6 Ply, All Terrain Tires (LT) with Full Size Spare Tire (if available) 

  SUB – TOTAL AMOUNT  $   . 

  OTHER COSTS  $    . 

  SALES TAX  $   . 

  TOTAL AMOUNT OF DELIVERED VEHICLE  $   . 

Delivery Location:  Gila County Fleet Management, 1001 Besich Blvd., Globe, AZ. 

Date of Delivery:  

Vendor Name:     Vendor Phone Number: 



15 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV 

PRICE SHEET 
Complete and return this form for the total price being proposed.  Attach any pertinent cost breakdowns, 
subtotals of component costs, etc. to this bid pricing page. 

DESCRIPTION:  Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4x4 SSV    (Build Sheet Must Accompany Bid) 

Vehicle Year, Make, & Model:  _____________________________________________________________ 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 

Purchase Up to five New, Full Size, 4 Door, 4x4, SSV 

MEETS MINIIMUM 
SPECIFICATIONS 

YES         NO 

Exterior:   Solid White 

Interior:    Light Color 

 Cloth Covered Front Buckets Seats without Console 

 Vinyl Covered Rear Bench Seat 

Power Features:    Door Locks  

  Windows 

   Mirrors 

 Driver Seat 

  Steering 

Keyless Entry 

Cruise Control 

Tilt Steering Wheel 

AM  FM Clock (CD) Radio Stereo 

6 Cylinder Gas Engine 

4 Wheel Drive 4x4 

Automatic Transmission 

Locking Differential 

Air Conditioning – in Front and Rear 

Deep Tinted Windows 

Front Tow Hooks  

Trailer Tow Package with Receiver Hitch 

Skid Plate Package 

6 Ply, All Terrain Tires (LT) with Full Size Spare Tire (if available) 

  SUB – TOTAL AMOUNT  $   . 

  OTHER COSTS  $   . 

  SALES TAX  $   . 

  TOTAL AMOUNT OF DELIVERED VEHICLE  $   . 

Delivery Location:  Gila County Fleet Management, 1001 Besich Blvd., Globe, AZ. 

Date of Delivery:  

Vendor Name:     Vendor Phone Number: 



16 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV 

PRICE SHEET 
Complete and return this form for the total price being proposed.  Attach any pertinent cost breakdowns, 
subtotals of component costs, etc. to this bid pricing page. 

DESCRIPTION:  Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4x4 SSV    (Build Sheet Must Accompany Bid) 

Vehicle Year, Make, & Model:  _____________________________________________________________ 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 

Purchase Up to five New, Full Size, 4 Door, 4x4, SSV 

MEETS MINIIMUM 
SPECIFICATIONS 

YES         NO 

Exterior:   Solid White 

Interior:    Light Color 

 Cloth Covered Front Buckets Seats without Console 

 Vinyl Covered Rear Bench Seat 

Power Features:    Door Locks  

  Windows 

   Mirrors 

 Driver Seat 

  Steering 

Keyless Entry 

Cruise Control 

Tilt Steering Wheel 

AM  FM Clock (CD) Radio Stereo 

6 Cylinder Gas Engine 

4 Wheel Drive 4x4 

Automatic Transmission 

Locking Differential 

Air Conditioning – in Front and Rear 

Deep Tinted Windows 

Front Tow Hooks  

Trailer Tow Package with Receiver Hitch 

Skid Plate Package 

6 Ply, All Terrain Tires (LT) with Full Size Spare Tire (if available) 

  SUB – TOTAL AMOUNT  $   . 

  OTHER COSTS  $   . 

  SALES TAX  $   . 

  TOTAL AMOUNT OF DELIVERED VEHICLE  $   . 

Delivery Location:  Gila County Fleet Management, 1001 Besich Blvd., Globe, AZ. 

Date of Delivery:  

Vendor Name:     Vendor Phone Number: 



17 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV 

PRICE SHEET 
Complete and return this form for the total price being proposed.  Attach any pertinent cost breakdowns, 
subtotals of component costs, etc. to this bid pricing page. 

DESCRIPTION:  Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4x4 SSV    (Build Sheet Must Accompany Bid) 

Vehicle Year, Make, & Model:  _____________________________________________________________ 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 

Purchase Up to five New, Full Size, 4 Door, 4x4, SSV 

MEETS MINIIMUM 
SPECIFICATIONS 

YES         NO 

Exterior:   Solid White 

Interior:    Light Color 

 Cloth Covered Front Buckets Seats without Console 

 Vinyl Covered Rear Bench Seat 

Power Features:    Door Locks  

  Windows 

   Mirrors 

 Driver Seat 

  Steering 

Keyless Entry 

Cruise Control 

Tilt Steering Wheel 

AM  FM Clock (CD) Radio Stereo 

6 Cylinder Gas Engine 

4 Wheel Drive 4x4 

Automatic Transmission 

Locking Differential 

Air Conditioning – in Front and Rear 

Deep Tinted Windows 

Front Tow Hooks  

Trailer Tow Package with Receiver Hitch 

Skid Plate Package 

6 Ply, All Terrain Tires (LT) with Full Size Spare Tire (if available) 

  SUB – TOTAL AMOUNT  $   . 

  OTHER COSTS  $   . 

  SALES TAX  $   . 

  TOTAL AMOUNT OF DELIVERED VEHICLE  $   . 

Delivery Location:  Gila County Fleet Management, 1001 Besich Blvd., Globe, AZ. 

Date of Delivery:  

Vendor Name:     Vendor Phone Number: 



18 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV 

PRICE SHEET 
Complete and return this form for the total price being proposed.  Attach any pertinent cost breakdowns, 
subtotals of component costs, etc. to this bid pricing page. 

DESCRIPTION:  Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4x4 SSV    (Build Sheet Must Accompany Bid) 

Vehicle Year, Make, & Model:  _____________________________________________________________ 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 

Purchase Up to five New, Full Size, 4 Door, 4x4, SSV 

MEETS MINIIMUM 
SPECIFICATIONS 

YES         NO 

Exterior:   Solid White 

Interior:    Light Color 

 Cloth Covered Front Buckets Seats without Console 

 Vinyl Covered Rear Bench Seat 

Power Features:    Door Locks  

  Windows 

   Mirrors 

 Driver Seat 

  Steering 

Keyless Entry 

Cruise Control 

Tilt Steering Wheel 

AM  FM Clock (CD) Radio Stereo 

6 Cylinder Gas Engine 

4 Wheel Drive 4x4 

Automatic Transmission 

Locking Differential 

Air Conditioning – in Front and Rear 

Deep Tinted Windows 

Front Tow Hooks  

Trailer Tow Package with Receiver Hitch 

Skid Plate Package 

6 Ply, All Terrain Tires (LT) with Full Size Spare Tire (if available) 

  SUB – TOTAL AMOUNT  $   . 

  OTHER COSTS  $   . 

  SALES TAX  $   . 

  TOTAL AMOUNT OF DELIVERED VEHICLE  $   . 

Delivery Location:  Gila County Fleet Management, 1001 Besich Blvd., Globe, AZ. 

Date of Delivery:  

Vendor Name:     Vendor Phone Number: 



19 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV 

AFFIDAVIT BY VENDOR 
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
)ss 

COUNTY OF: ) 

_________________________________________________________________________________  
(Name of Individual) being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 

That he is 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 

    (Title) 

of____________________________________________________________________________   and 
    (Name of Business) 

That he is bidding on Gila County Bid No. 021616-1 - Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4x4 SSV 
and, 

That neither he nor anyone associated with the said ________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________________ 
      (Name of Business) 

has, directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion or otherwise 
taken any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the above mentioned 
project. 

___________________________________ 
Name of Business 

___________________________________ 
By 

___________________________________ 
Title 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ____________ day of _________________________, 2016. 

_______________________________________________________       My Commission expires: 
Notary Public      

      ______________________________ 



20 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 

Vendor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this Contract  comply with all federal immigration 
laws applicable to Vendor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (together 
the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Vendor shall further ensure that each subcontractor who performs any 
work for Vendor under this contract likewise complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws. 

County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Vendor and any subcontractor in order to 
verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.   

 Any breach of Vendor’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or 
of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract subjecting Vendor to 
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this Contract. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the 
subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Vendor shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to 
either self-perform the services that would have been provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement 
subcontractor, as soon as possible so as not to delay project completion.   

 Vendor shall advise each subcontractor of County’s rights, and the subcontractor’s obligations, under this Article by 
including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form: 
 “Subcontractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). 
Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor’s books and records to insure that 
Subcontractor is in compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by Subcontractor will be deemed 
to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or 
termination of this contract.”  

Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the responsibility of 
Vendor.  In the event that remedial action under this Article results in delay to one or more tasks on the critical path of 
Vendor’s approved construction or critical milestones schedule, such period of delay shall be deemed excusable delay 
for which Vendor shall be entitled to an extension of time, but not costs. 

_____________________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Representative 

_____________________________________________ 
Printed Name 

_____________________________________________ 
Title 



21 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV 

BIDDERS CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all Bid Documents shall be completed, executed, and submitted with this IFB.  
If bidder fails to complete or execute any portion of the Bid Documents, this IFB will be determined to be 
“non-responsive” and rejected. 

CHECKLIST: 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT     COMPLETED AND EXECUTED 

QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM ___________ 

PRICE SHEETS ___________ 

NO COLLUSION AFFADAVIT ___________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKS ACT COMPLIANCE  ___________ 

BIDDERS CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT ___________ 

OFFER PAGE ___________ 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: 

 #1   #2  #3   #4  #5 
Initials __________   __________   __________   __________   __________ 

Date __________   __________   __________   __________   __________ 

Signed and dated this _________ day of _____________________, 2016 

         __________________________________________________ 
  VENDOR: 

         __________________________________________________ 
   BY:  (Signature) 

Each bid shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Gila County Procurement Group and bearing the following 
statement on the outside of the envelope:  Invitation for Bids:  Bid No. 021616-1 Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 
4 Door 4x4 SSV.  All bids shall be filed with the Gila County Finance Department at the Guerrero Complex, 1400 E. Ash 
St., Globe, AZ on or before April 04, 2016, 4:00 PM. 



22 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV 

OFFER PAGE 

TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms and conditions, 
instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this Invitation for bids. 

Signature also certifies the Vendors bid is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that the bid is not made 
with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Vendor submitting the bid has not revealed the contents of 
the bid to, or in any way colluded with, any other Vendor which may compete for the contract; and that no other 
Vendor which may compete for the contract has revealed the contents of a bid to, or in any way colluded with, the 
Vendor submitting this bid. 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  021616-1 Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4x4 SSV 

Firm Submitting Bid: For clarification of this offer, contact: 

________________________________________ Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 

________________________________________ Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   

Fax   ____________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City                                State                                Zip Email:  __________________________________ 

______________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 

______________________________________ 
Printed Name 

______________________________________ 
Title 

Bid must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents for the Firm. 



23 

BID NO. 021616-1 
Purchase Up to Five (5) New Full Size 4 Door 4X4 SSV 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 
(For Gila County use only) 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 

The Vendor                       is now bound to provide the materials or services listed in 

Invitation for Bid No.: 021616-1 including all terms and conditions, specifications, amendments, etc. and the 

Vendor’s Offer as accepted by County entity. 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as     Contract No. 021616-1    . The Vendor has been cautioned 

not to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this Contract until Vendor 

receives written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

Awarded this _________ day of ___________________, 2016 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 

__________________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

__________________________________________________ 
Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 



   

ARF-3620     Regular Agenda Item      2. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders,
Director 

Department: Public Works Division: Engineering

Information
Request/Subject
Citizen’s Petition to begin the process to designate Stageline Road and Singletree Lane
as primitive roads.

Background Information
Gila County Public Works received a Citizens' Petition to establish Stageline Road and
Singletree Lane as primitive roads. These roads are located south of Payson in the
Round Valley area.

Evaluation
The petition and the roads meet the requirements of Public Works Policy No.
ENG03-03 “Guidelines to Primitive Roads” which was approved by the Board of
Supervisors on October 3, 2003, and revised on December 1, 2004.

Conclusion
Easements from property owners will need to be granted to Gila County. Once the
easements are accepted by the County, providing maintenance as described in the
Primitive Road Policy will consist of grading the roads a few times a year. Providing
maintenance on these roads will not reduce the level of service to other roads in the
Gila County Maintained Roadway System.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that the Board accept the Citizens'
Petition to begin the process to establish Stageline Road and Singletree Lane as
primitive roads.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to accept the Citizens' Petition to begin the process to
establish Stageline Road and Singletree Lane as primitive roads.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Petition
Map
Location Map











   

ARF-3548     Regular Agenda Item      2. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders,
Director 

Department: Public Works Division: Engineering

Information
Request/Subject
Public Sale for a portion of W. Cocopah Lane, Official Map No. 241, Gila County
Records, AZ.

Background Information
On November 17, 2015 during a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, the
Board gave the approval to begin the process to abandon an unnecessary public
roadway being a portion of W. Cocopah Lane.  Staff began the necessary notifications
and public postings of the Board's decision.

A portion of property owner's carport encroaches into the right-of-way of W. Cocopah
Lane.  Abandoning the portion of W. Cocopah Lane burdened by the encroachment will
not affect the traveling public that uses W. Cocopah Lane.  The respective property
owner has been contacted and given the option to exercise preference rights before the
proposed date of sale, or appear at the public sale, and submit a bid for that portion of
W. Cocopah Lane.

Janet Mielke has submitted a bid in the amount of $52 for this portion of W.
Cocopah Lane.  This bid meets the minimum requirements established by the current
Gila County policy on the abandonment of roadways in Gila County.

No other bids have been received; however, bids may be accepted at the public sale. 
 

Evaluation
Cocopah Lane was known as Arrowhead Drive on the Geronimo Estates Unit One Plat. 
Geronimo Estates Unit One was recorded in April 1960.  West Cocopah Lane is a
dedicated public road which is 40 feet in width.  Abandoning this portion of Cocopah
Lane burdened by the encroachment will not affect the traveling public that use W.
Cocopah Lane.

Conclusion
Abandonment of this portion of road will not deny access to private property in the
area.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that Gila County accept the bid from



The Public Works Division Director recommends that Gila County accept the bid from
Janet Mielke.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action for the public sale of a portion of W. Cocopah Lane,
which is adjacent to Lot 14, Geronimo Estates Unit One, north of Payson as shown on
Official Map No. 241, and to accept the bid in the amount of $52 from Janet Mielke for
that portion of W. Cocopah Lane.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Acknowledgment and Notice of Sale







   

ARF-3549     Regular Agenda Item      2. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders,
Director 

Department: Public Works Division: Engineering

Information
Request/Subject
Public Sale for a portion of Elaine Way, Official Map No. 448, Gila County Records, AZ.

Background Information
On December 15, 2015, during a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, the
Board gave the approval to begin the process of an unnecessary public roadway being
a portion of Elaine Way. Staff began the necessary notifications and public postings of
the Board's decision.

A portion of property owner's home, stairs, upper deck and another smaller building
encroach into the right-of-way of Elaine Way. Abandoning said portion of Elaine Way
burdened by the encroachments will not affect the traveling public that use Elaine
Way. Said property owner has been contacted and given the option that can exercise
preference rights before the proposed date of sale by or appear at the public sale, and
submit a bid for that portion of Elaine Way.

Jeffrey Yoder has submitted a bid in the amount of $144 for this portion of Elaine Way.
This bid meets the minimum requirements established by the current Gila County
policy on the abandonment of roadways in Gila County.  

No other bids have been received; however, bids may be accepted at the public sale.

Evaluation
Elaine Way is a dedicated public road forty six (46) feet in width and is adjacent to Lot
9, Christopher Creek Haven, Plat Five. Christopher Creek Haven, Plat Five was
recorded in April 1971. Abandoning the portion burdened by the encroachments will
not affect the traveling public that use Elaine Way.

Conclusion
Abandonment of this portion of road will not deny anyone access to private property in
the area.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that Gila County accept the bid from
Jeffrey Yoder.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action for the public sale of a portion of Elaine Way, which is



Information/Discussion/Action for the public sale of a portion of Elaine Way, which is
adjacent to Lot 9, Christopher Creek Haven, Plat Five, east of Payson as shown on
Official Map No. 448, and to accept the bid in the amount of $144 from Jeffrey Yoder
for that portion of Elaine Way.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Notice of Sale







   

ARF-3642     Regular Agenda Item      2. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders,
Director 

Submitted By: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager

Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Approve Agreement No. 030116 for the Annual Yearling Auction/Sale Request for
Equipment Assistance.

Background Information
The Gila County Cattle Growers Association holds an annual yearling auction/sale at
the Burch Sale Yard.  This sale is typically held in May of each year.  

Evaluation
In recent years, the annual yearling auction/sale has generated revenue to Gila
County in excess of $2,000,000. 

Conclusion
The Gila County Cattle Growers Association is asking for support during the annual
yearling auction/sale to be held on May 2, 2016.  In order for Gila County to
administer equipment support, it is agreed that only Gila County employees will be
operating any equipment utilized. 

It is anticipated there will be a need for a water truck, blade and backhoe.  This
request also includes the use of a tent, tables, and chairs.

Recommendation
Public Works recommends that Gila County assist in the annual yearling sale by
supplying equipment to be operated by Gila County certified operators who will be
operating the equipment while on their personal time.  Public Works also recommends
that Gila County assist by supplying a tent, tables, and chairs.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Agreement No. 030116 between Gila
County and the Gila County Cattle Growers Association; pursuant to
A.R.S. §11-254.04, to find that to assist in the annual yearling auction/sale is an
economic development activity because it will assist in the creation or retention of jobs
or will otherwise improve or enhance the economic welfare of the inhabitants of Gila
County; and, to authorize Public Works to supply requested tent, tables, chairs,
and equipment with Gila County certified operators for the Gila County Cattle Growers
Association's annual yearling auction/sale between April 25, 2016, through May 2,
2016.  (Steve Sanders)



Attachments
Agreement No. 030116-Gila County Cattle Growers Association
Cattle Growers Request Letter
Gila County Cattle Growers Association 501(c)5















   

ARF-3653     Regular Agenda Item      2. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders,
Director 

Department: Public Works Division: Engineering

Information
Request/Subject
Adopt Resolution No. 16-03-01 designating Randall Place as a public roadway.

Background Information
Randall Place in Pine is an east west collector road in Pine that provides access to SR
87. Over 20 years ago the County maintained Randall Place. Research by staff a
number of years ago determined that the County had no easement for the road and
maintenance stopped. Over the years staff has attempted to identify the owners of the
road, but have been unable to do so. Property descriptions along the road do not take
the road into consideration and the deeds all set back from the road. The Department
of the Interior U.S. Geological Survey Maps from 1934 and 1952 show the road and
classify it as an unimproved dirt road. Conversations with long-time residents of the
area have indicated the road has been used by the public for as long as anyone can
remember.

Arizona Revised Statute (A.R.S.) §28-7041(C) provides a method for the County to
maintain the road as a public highway.
A.R.S. § 28-7041. State highways and routes defined states:
A. The state highways, to be known as state routes, consist of the highways
declared before August 12, 1927 to be state highways, under authority of law,
that the board, after receipt of a recommendation from the director, may add to,
abandon or change. If the board proceeds contrary to the recommendations of the
director, it shall file a written report with the governor stating the reasons for the
action.
B. The state highways consist of the parts of the state routes designated and
accepted as state highways by the board. A highway that has not been
designated as a state route shall not become a state highway and any portion of
a state route shall not become a state highway until it has been specifically
designated and accepted by the board as a state highway and ordered to be
constructed and improved.
C. All highways, roads or streets that have been constructed, laid out, opened,
established or maintained for ten years or more by the state or an agency or
political subdivision of the state before January 1, 1960 and that have been used
continuously by the public as thoroughfares for free travel and passage for ten
years or more are declared public highways, regardless of an error, defect or
omission in the proceeding or failure to act to establish those highways, roads or
streets or in recording the proceedings.



Evaluation
Randall Place meets the requirements of A.R.S. §28-7041(C).  By authorizing Randall
Place to be included in the Gila County Maintained Roadway System, it will allow the
Public Works Division to maintain the road and provide a service to the residents and
citizens of the County who use the road on a daily basis.

Conclusion
Providing maintenance on Randall Place will not reduce the level of service to other
roads in the Gila County Maintained Roadway System.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No.
16-03-01 designating Randall Place as a public roadway and accepting the road into
the Gila County Maintained Roadway System.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 16-03-01 designating Randall
Place as a public roadway and accepting said road into the Gila County Maintained
Roadway System.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Resolution No. 16-03-01
Map 1934
Map 1952











   
ARF-3629     Regular Agenda Item      2. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  
Submitted For: Jacque Sanders, Asst. County Manager/Librarian 
Submitted By: Jacque Sanders, Asst. County Manager/Librarian
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of responses for the Survey of Counties Land Management and
Conditions to be submitted to the Arizona Transfer for Federally Managed
Lands Study Committee.  

Background Information
In 2015, the Transfer of Public Lands Study Committee (TPL) was
established by the Arizona Legislature and Governor to examine processes
to transfer, manage and dispose of federal lands within Arizona.  This
study committee consists of the chairperson and vice chairperson of the
House of Representatives committee on agriculture, water and lands, the
chairperson and vice chairperson of the Senate committee on rural affairs
and environment and a member of the public appointed by the Governor.

One of the specific outcomes outlined in the purposes of this committee is
to survey the County Board of Supervisors of counties that contain at
least fifteen percent land area under the management of federal agencies. 
The TPL has established that the attached survey be completed and
returned by March 22, 2016, and that each county only submit one
survey.

Evaluation
Since the land management within Gila County is primarily under the
jurisdiction of  the United States Forest Service, it is important that the
County respond to this survey on behalf of the residents that live, work
and play here. The survey instrument covers five main areas: Public
Health, Safety and Welfare, Environmental Quality, Economic Productivity
and Sustainability, Consistency with State and Local Objectives, and
Ownership and Jurisdictional Responsibilities.  Various factors influence
each of these areas, and consideration has been given to each.

Conclusion



Approval and submittal of this survey will ensure that the Gila County
Board of Supervisors has been responsive to the request for participation
in the TPL Committee's effort to evaluate this topic and provides input
into the development of management priorities for public lands.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the attached survey be approved for submission to
the Transfer of Federally Managed Lands Study Committee.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Gila County's response to
the Survey of Counties Land Management and Conditions for submittal to
the Arizona Transfer of Federally Managed Lands Committee.  (Jacque
Sanders)

Attachments
Survey-Gila County's Response



Transfer of Federally Managed Lands Study Committee  
Survey of Counties Land Management and Conditions 

Page 1 of 5 

 

This survey is being promulgated by the Transfer of Federally managed Lands Study Committee to gather 

information to evaluate the management of certain federal lands in Arizona, assessing risks, and 

identifying solutions. 

Please return your survey by March 22, 2016 to: 

Chairman: REPRESENTATIVE BRENDA BARTON     bbarton@azleg.gov  

Vice Chairman: SENATOR SYLVIA ALLEN     sallen@azleg.gov  

GINA KASH-HOUSE POLICY ADVISOR      gkash@azleg.gov  

TOM SAVAGE -- HOUSE RESEARCHER FOR AGRICULTURE WATER LAND; ENERGY NATURAL 

RESOURCES COMMITTEES        tsavage@azleg.gov  

 
Please attach any supplemental explanations, comments, suggestions, or other information 

your board finds pertinent. 

### 

A. PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE: (Attach explanation for each response as needed) 

1.  Do current wildfire conditions on federally managed lands within your county pose a significant threat 

to: [Check all that apply add percent or comments] 

  __X___ Public Health and Safety __X__Public Property __X___ Private Property 

 

2. Do you believe fire hazard on federally managed lands should be reduced to protect public health and 

safety within your county? [Check all that apply add percent or comments] 

  __X___ Yes _____ No _____ Unsure 

About half of the USFS land in Gila County is at risk for catastrophic fire, and threatens more than half of the 

communities and residents within Gila County. 

3. Regarding the water supply your citizens use, does current federal land management of watersheds: 

[Check all that apply add percent or comments] 

  ____ Optimize water yield __X__ Diminish water yield ____ Have no impact 

 

4. How important is it for people of your county to have motorized access to public lands for sustenance 

activities such as gathering wood, picking mushrooms and berries, hiking, harvesting wild game, CAMPING 

OR PICNICING etc.? 

  __X__Very Important ____Not Important ____Unsure 

5. Is there an adequate supply of motorized roads on federally managed lands in your county to 

accommodate emergency ingress/egress for search and rescue, facility maintenance, public access, and 

resource management? [Check all that apply add percent or comments] 

mailto:bbarton@azleg.gov
mailto:sallen@azleg.gov
mailto:gkash@azleg.gov
mailto:tsavage@azleg.gov


Transfer of Federally Managed Lands Study Committee  
Survey of Counties Land Management and Conditions 

Page 2 of 5 

 

  __X__ Yes ____ No ____ Unsure 

This is a difficult balance to maintain, between access and habitat protection. The new Travel Management 

Plan will restrict access in some areas that are now accessible. 

6. Regarding multiple-use recreational access routes on federally managed lands, does your county 

desire: [Check all that apply add percent or comments] 

  ____ Increased Multi-Use Access ____ Reduced Multi-Use Access ___X__ Keep Access As Is 

 

Do you know the quantity of federally manages acres in your county? What agency administers policies 

over that land and what percentage is that of your county? 

  __X___ Yes _____ No _____ Unsure 

USFS – 55.42%   (1,700,928 acres) 

Tribal Lands – 37.9% (1,163,430 acres) 

BLM – 2.15%  (66,048 acres) 

National Park Service – 0.04% (1,107 acres) 

Bureau of Reclamation – 0.01% (204 acres) 
 

### 

B.  ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY: (Attach explanation for each response as needed) 

1. Do you believe current fuel loads on any of the federally managed lands within your county could result 

in severe, uncontrollable, or catastrophic wildfires? (If so, provide, if practicable, geographic location and 

approximate acreage in an attachment) [Add percent or comments] 

  __X__ Yes ____ No _____ Unsure 

Along and under the Mogollon Rim 

Sierra Ancha Mountains 

CC Cragin water reservoir is highly susceptible to damage  

Pinal Mountains  
 

2. Is a high intensity wildfire on federally managed lands likely to cause a loss of important fish & wildlife 

habitat or harm to Threatened or Endangered Species in your county (e.g. Apache Trout, Spiked Dace, 

Loach Minnows, black-footed ferret)? [Check all that apply add percent or comments] 

  ___X__ Yes _____ No _____Unsure 

In a cursory search, there are at least 25 T & E species (plants and animals) that could be harmed by a high 

intensity wildfire within Gila County. 

3. Are environmental threats such as noxious weeds, invasive species and bark beetle adequately 

controlled on federal lands within your county? 



Transfer of Federally Managed Lands Study Committee  
Survey of Counties Land Management and Conditions 

Page 3 of 5 

 

  _____ Yes __X___ No __ Unsure 

 

4. Does the air quality in your county fall below acceptable health standards due to smoke originating 

from wild fires and/or prescribed burns on federally managed lands? 

  __X___ Yes _____ No _____ Unsure 

 

 

### 

C.  ECONOMIC PRODUCTIVITY AND SUSTAINABILITY: (Attach explanation for each response as 

needed) 

1. Is the Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT revenues) your county derives from federally managed lands 

equivalent to the amount that actual land taxation of that these lands would bring? (Present Current fall 

2015 revenue) 

  _____ Yes __X___ No Please provide actual amount received and estimate PILT as a percentage of your 

county budget. 

We will receive approximately $3.4 million in federal PILT 8.5% of the general fund budget, and 3.8% of the 

total (all funds) budget. 

2. Are there any federally managed lands in your county for which you do not receive PILT payments? 

Please be specific: acreage name of facility etc. (e.g. Indian reservations, National Parks) 

 __X___ Yes _____ No _____ Unsure 

San Carlos, White Mountain, and Tonto Apache Tribal Lands and Tonto National Monument. 

3. Is the amount your county derives from the Secure Rural Schools (SRS) funds equivalent to the amount 

that your county could derive from responsible harvest or extraction of natural resources? 

  _____ Yes __X___ No Please provide actual amount received and estimate SRS as a percentage of 

county budget (include present short fall). 

Gila County will receive $1.4 million in SRS funding for the current fiscal year. 

With 1,700,928 acres of Forest land X $7/ac (based on existing comparable land) there is the potential for 

$11,906,496.00 as compared to $4.8 million ($1.4m in SRS and $3.4m in PILT). 

4. Is the economic productivity and number of related private sector jobs commensurate with the resource 

production capacity of the federally managed lands within your county? (Forestry, mining, ranching, 

recreation management) 

  _____ Yes ___X__ No _____ Unsure 

 



Transfer of Federally Managed Lands Study Committee  
Survey of Counties Land Management and Conditions 

Page 4 of 5 

 

5. Are federal policies for Threatened or Endangered Species adversely impacting private land owners, 

businesses, industries, or citizens within your county? (Species details and / or details where possible) 

  __X___ Yes _____ No _____ Unsure 

Particularly, the Willow flycatcher, the Mexican spotted owl, the two newly listed garter snakes, the Chiricahua 

leopard frog, and the various fish, as well as the proposed release of the Mexican Wolf and the continuing 

conversation regarding the ocelot, the leopard,  the grizzly bear and the thick billed parrot, to name just a few. 

6. Has federally managed land management resulted in adverse impacts to your county's economy?  

(details where possible) 

___X__ Yes _____ No _____ Unsure 

The reduction in allowable livestock numbers from 60,000 permitted head in 1980, to an estimated 10,000 

permitted head today is a direct effect of the management related to endangered species. This does not take into 

account the revenue lost from the logging or mining industries. 

 

7. Do you believe changes in federally managed land management is necessary to increases positively 

impact your county's economy, employment opportunities, or tax base? 

  __X___ Yes _____ No _____ Unsure 

### 

D.  CONSISTENCY WITH STATE AND LOCAL OBJECTIVES: (Attach explanation for each response 

as needed) 

1. Are federally managed land management actions consistent with your county's objectives? (specifics 

sectors where possible) 

____ Yes __X_ No _____ Unsure 

 

2. Would your county like state assistance incorporating local government objectives into Federally 

managed land management actions? 

  ____ Yes ____ No __X_ Unsure 

### 

E.  OWNERSHIP AND JURISDICTIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES: 

1. Has your county experienced conflicts with federally managed  or federal claimed ownership or 

jurisdictional responsibilities? 

  _____ Yes __X_ No (Please attach detailed description of conflicts) 

 



Transfer of Federally Managed Lands Study Committee  
Survey of Counties Land Management and Conditions 

Page 5 of 5 

 

2. How much influence do you believe special interests have on the ability of federal agencies to develop 

and implement effective land and resource management plans on federal lands in your county? 

  _____ None _____Moderate (please explain) _X_Significant (please explain) 

 

3. On a separate sheet, please describe your county's most significant concerns with federal land 

management, including current and past relations and communications with federal agencies and other 

relevant factors you believe legislators should be aware of. Provide any ideas that may help reduce risks 

or resolve concerns in these areas. Please be as specific as possible. 

Our most significant land management issue is the desertification of the land which encourages invasive species 

and significantly reduces the productivity of the land. 

 

 

Submitted by: Signature: ______________________________________ 

 

INCLUDE TITLE PRINTED NAME: Michael A Pastor__  

      Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Date:  March 15, 2016  Attested by: ____________________ 

                        Marian Sheppard, Clerk 

               Gila County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

CONTACT; PHONE – EMAIL __Jacque Sanders 

(928) 402-8770 

jsanders@glacountyaz.gov 

 

mailto:jsanders@glacountyaz.gov


   
ARF-3666     Regular Agenda Item      2. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  
Submitted By: Marian

Sheppard, Clerk
of the Board

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Sealed Bid for the purchase of Assessor's parcel no. 206-10-104.

Background Information
On November 21, 2014, the Gila County Treasurer deeded Assessor's
parcel number 206-10-104 to the State of Arizona c/o Board of
Supervisors because the previous owner did not pay taxes on the subject
property for 7 consecutive years.  The property address for this parcel is
6151 S. Calle De Loma, Claypool, Arizona.

This parcel was included in the list of properties to be sold at the Board of
Supervisors' August 4, 2015, annual property tax sale/auction; however,
it did not sell.  After the sale, the property was added to a list of properties
that did not sell at previous Board auctions and it was made available for
purchase year round.

The Treasurer obtained information that the Arizona Health Care Cost
Containment System (AHCCCS) has placed a lien in the amount of
$42,441.30 on this property.

Evaluation
An individual expressed an interest in purchasing this property; however,
he is requesting to purchase the property for less than the lien amount
which is $7,091.97  Gila County Resolution No. 15-05-05 states,
"WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors may waive the requirement to sell
the property for no less than the total lien amount if a condition warrants
selling a parcel at a lesser price." 

The subject property contains a deteriorated house and the property is
covered in overgrown shrubs, weeds and trash. It is affecting the values of
surrounding properties.  The prospective buyer would like to purchase
the property in order to clean it up as he plans on building a wall/fence



the property in order to clean it up as he plans on building a wall/fence
around the property to store his recreational vehicles.  He will be
contacting the County Building Department to verify if the property can be
used for storage.  He is aware that the AHCCCS also has a lien on the
property. 

Conclusion
There are many blighted properties in Gila County.  Due to liability
issues, Gila County is unable to clean up the property because it is owned
by the State of Arizona.  It would be advantageous for the Board of
Supervisors to consider a bid that is less than the lien amount so that the
prospective buyer could clean up the property.  It would be a win-win
situation for both the prospective buyer, Gila County and the neighboring
property owners.  The prospective buyer would be able to purchase a
house at a nominal cost; Claypool would have one less blighted property,
and the County would benefit by having the property once again listed on
the tax rolls.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors consider the bid for the
purchase of Assessor's tax parcel number 206-10-104.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the purchase
of Assessor's tax parcel number 206-10-104.  (Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Information on 206-10-104
Pictures and Map of 206-10-104













   

ARF-3626     Consent Agenda Item      3. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Kelly Jones, Administrative Clerk Specialist
Department: Public Works Division: Fairground Facilities

Information
Request/Subject
Fee waiver request for all 4-H/FFA activities to be held at the Gila County Fairgrounds
in 2016.  Event dates range between March and September of 2016 for various
activities; proposed dates are listed in the body of the Fee Waiver Application.  All
dates will be scheduled to ensure that there are no conflicts with other events.

Background Information
The University of Arizona Gila County Cooperative Extension 4-H Program provides an
educational experience that prepares Gila County youth to be better citizens in the
future, all at no charge to the members.  4-H is a world wide organization that provides
out-of-school learning, leadership experiences, and adult mentoring that help young
people achieve success.  There was a research study done by Tufts University,
Medford, MA over 8 years that defined and measured positive youth development. 
Compared to their peers, the findings show that youth involved in 4-H programs excel
in several areas:  Nearly 4x more likely to make contributions to their communities,
about 2x more likely to be civically active, nearly 2x more likely to participate in
science programs during out-of-school times, girls are 2x to 3x (depending on the
grade level) to take part in science programs compared to girls in other out-of-school
time activities, and nearly 2x more likely to make healthier choices.

The National FFA Organization through the Globe FFA program promotes premier
leadership, personal growth, and career success for its members.  It is an educational
program that prepares it's members for successful careers, and a lifetime of informed
choices in the food and natural resource systems by participating in many community
events.  They participate in many events with the 4-H club and would be using the
Fairgrounds Facilities individually and in tandem with 4-H.

Evaluation
No membership fees are paid by the 4-H members to the University of Arizona Gila
County Cooperative Extension 4-H Program.  There is; therefore, no funding available
to pay facility rental fees.  It is impossible to put a monetary value on what 4-H gives
back to the community.  4-H programs are designed to shape future leaders and
innovators.  Past alumni include Mayors, Governors, Members of the US House of
Representatives, US Senators, Vice President Al Gore, First Lady Jaqueline
Kennedy-Onassis, First Lady Rosalynn Carter, astronauts, heads of business, and
many other well known individuals that have given back to their communities what
they received from their 4-H experience.



The Globe FFA members participate in many community events and the education and
support that the members receive from FFA and the resulting impact on the members
and their community is immeasurable.

Conclusion
The 4-H Program is a non-profit organization that greatly benefits the Gila County area
at no charge to its members.  4-H inspires young people to work collaboratively, take
the lead on their own projects and set and achieve goals with confidence.  Risk
behavior is greatly reduced in 4-H members which, in turn, saves the County money.
 The benefit to the community from 4-H having a safe environment to conduct their
events is greater than the fees that may have been garnered by charging the
organization rental fees.

The Globe FFA is a 501(c)3 nonprofit organization that receives limited funding.  The
program greatly benefits the Gila County area by preparing its members for successful
careers, becoming premier leaders, and educating them regarding making informed
choices in the food and natural resource systems that would beneficially impact the
Gila County community.

Recommendation
It would be very beneficial to the 4-H/Globe FFA Programs if the Board of Supervisors
would consider waiving all fees for the use of the County Fairgrounds facilities for
4-H/FFA events to be held in 2016.  A list of the requested dates for 4-H/Globe
FFA Program events to be held at the Fairgrounds facilities is included in the Fee
Waiver Application.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a request submitted by the University of Arizona Gila County Cooperative
Extension 4-H Program and the Globe FFA Program to waive fees for the use of the
Gila County Fairgrounds facilities for their 2016 activities.

Attachments
4-H App 2016
4-H Letter 2016
4-H/FFA Fee Waiver App
4-H Study Results
4-H COI 2016
FFA FG Use App 2016 
FFA Fee Waiver Letter
FFA Non Profit Proof
County Attorney's Comments









































Gila County Attorney’s Office 

Comments 

March 8, 2016 

Request for Rental Fee Waiver for 4-H and FFA 

 

The University of Arizona Gila County Cooperative Extension 
4-H Program (“4-H”) and the Globe FFA program (“FFA”) have 
requested that the Gila County Board of Supervisors (“Board”) waive 
the rental fees of $31,746.00 and $775.00, respectively, for use of 
the Gila County Fairgrounds facilities. 

 The question presented is whether a fee waiver to this private 
entity for this private activity would violate the Gift Clause of the 
Arizona Constitution. Ariz. Const. art. 9, § 7: 

 

Neither the state, nor any county, city, town, 
municipality, or other subdivision of the state 
shall ever give or loan its credit in the aid of, or 
make any donation or grant, by subsidy or 
otherwise, to any individual, association, or 
corporation, or become a subscriber to, or a 
shareholder in, any company or corporation, or 
become a joint owner with any person, 
company, or corporation, except as to such 
ownerships as may accrue to the state by 
operation or provision of law or as authorized 
by law solely for investment of the monies in 
the various funds of the state. 



 
(Emphasis added.) 

 

 Governmental expenditure does not violate the Gift Clause if: 
1) it has a public purpose, and 2) in return for its expenditure, the 
governmental entity receives consideration that is not so 
inequitable and unreasonable that it amounts to an abuse of 
discretion, thus providing a forbidden subsidy to the private entity. 
Meyer v. Turken, 223 Ariz. 342, 224 .3d 158 (2010). 

 First the expenditure must be for a public purpose.  Cases 
interpreting public purpose have given it an expansive meaning.  Id.   
For example, the court, in Town of Gila Bend v. Walled Lake Door Co., 
107 Ariz. 545, 490 P.2d 551 (1971), found public purpose in the 
construction of a water line serving only one factory.  In Meyer, the 
court stated: “we have repeatedly emphasized that the primary 
determination of whether a specific purpose constitutes a ‘public 
purpose’ is assigned to the political branches of government, which 
are directly accountable to the public.” Absence of public purpose is 
found only in rare cases where the governmental body’s discretion 
has been unquestionably abused.  Id. 

 The purposes of the proposed 4-H and FFA activities are to 
prepare members to become better citizens and teach them to give 
back to the community.   

 Second is the comparison of the consideration to be exchanged.  
“Consideration” is a performance or return promise that is 
bargained for in exchange for the promise of the other party; it is 
what one party to a contract obligates itself to do, or forbear from 



doing, in return for the promise of the other contracting party.  
Courts do not ordinarily examine the proportionality of 
consideration between parties contracting at arm’s length, leaving 
such issues to the marketplace.  However, in Gift Clause analysis, 
adequacy of consideration is examined because paying far too much 
for something creates a forbidden subsidy by the public.  The 
potential for a forbidden subsidy is heightened when a public entity 
enters into a contract without the benefit of competitive proposals. 
Id. 

In Meyer v. Turken, the court considered the agreement by the 
City of Phoenix to pay as much as $97.4 million to a developer to set 
aside 2,980 parking garage spaces for the non-exclusive use of the 
general public and 200 spaces for the exclusive use of drivers in 
commuting programs.  The payments by the city were conditioned 
on the developer constructing the garage spaces and at least 1.02 
million square feet of retail space.  The court said the comparison of 
what each party was giving could not include the indirect benefits to 
be given by the developer such as the anticipated sales tax revenue, 
denser development, decreased pollution, and employment 
opportunities for city residents.  Only the “objective fair market 
value of what the private party has promised to provide in return 
for the public entity’s payment” could be considered.  “[T]he most 
objective and reliable way to determine whether the private party 
has received a forbidden subsidy is to compare the public 
expenditure to what the government receives under the contract.  
When government payment is grossly disproportionate to what is 
received in return, the payment violates the Gift Clause.” Id.  The 
court said the exchange likely violated the Gift Clause. 



4-H and FFA are offering to obligate themselves to conduct 
activities at the county facility in exchange for the county’s promise 
to waive the rental fees involved.  4-H and FFA receive free rent.  
What does the government receive?  Under A.R.S. § 11-251(24), the 
Board may [a]cquire and hold property for the use of county fairs, 
and conduct, take care of, and manage them.”  4-H and FFA activities 
which assist the Board in conducting, caring for, and managing a 
county fair, would directly benefit the Board with a project it has 
statutory authorized to perform. 

Let us examine the consideration going both ways.  The 
objective fair market value of the normal rental fee is $31,746.00 for 
4-H and $775.00 for FFA. The objective fair market value to the 
county of the direct benefits of 4-H and FFA in connection with 
conducting, caring for, and managing a county fair is to be compared 
to that.  (The anticipated indirect benefits to the county of the value 
of the members of 4-H and FFA becoming good citizens cannot be 
counted in the consideration analysis.)  

Therefore, the duty of the board, to avoid violating the Gift 
Clause, is to make the following determinations: 

1. the 4-H and FFA activities proposed to be held at the 
fairgrounds serve a public purpose, and 

2. the objective fair market value of the direct benefits to the 
county of the 4-H and FFA activities proposed to be held at 
the fairgrounds is not grossly disproportional to the 
consideration given by the county, which is $31,746.00 and 
$775.00. 
 
 



Insurance 

 Another issue that the board needs to address is the liability 
insurance. 

 The application for use of the fairgrounds requires the user to 
have a liability insurance policy that provides two million dollars in 
coverage.  4-H has a policy that provides one million dollars in 
liability coverage.   

 The board of supervisors would have to reduce the liability 
insurance coverage requirement from two million dollars to one 
million dollars in this instance in order for 4-H to use the facility. 

 FFA has not yet provided insurance verification.  When it does, 
if it is below two million dollars, the Board will have to take the 
same action in order for FFA to use the facility. 



   

ARF-3647     Consent Agenda Item      3. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Kelly Jones, Administrative Clerk Specialist
Department: Public Works Division: Fairground Facilities

Information
Request/Subject
The Gila County Rodeo Committee is requesting a waiver of fees for use of the
Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall for the annual Vendor Appreciation Dinner on April 30, 2016,
and the Rodeo Arena for the Annual Copper Dust Stampede Rodeo to be held on May
6-7, 2016.

Background Information
The Gila County Rodeo Committee has submitted a request to waive the fees for the
use of the Gila County Fairgrounds facilities for the following events:  April 30, 2016 -
Exhibit Hall for the Sponsors' Dinner, and May 6-7, 2016- Rodeo Arena for the Copper
Dust Stampede Rodeo.

Evaluation
The Copper Dust Stampede Rodeo provides fun for the family and is beneficial to the
economy of the community. The Sponsors' Dinner shows appreciation for all those
involved in keeping the Gila County Rodeo an ongoing tradition.

Conclusion
In past years, the Board of Supervisors has waived the fees and allowed the Gila
County Rodeo Committee to use the Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall and Rodeo Arena for the
annual Gila County Rodeo.

There is no conflict with dates; insurance certificates will be provided for events and
security will be arranged with Detective Johnny Holmes of the Gila County Sheriff's
Office.

Recommendation
Public Works staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors waive the fees and allow
the Gila County Rodeo Committee to use the Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall and Rodeo
Arena for their annual rodeo event and dinner.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a request submitted by the Gila County Rodeo Committee to waive fees for
the use of the Gila County Fairgrounds Rodeo Arena for the Copper Dust Stampede
Rodeo on May 6-7, 2016, and the Exhibit Hall on April 30, 2016, for the Sponsors'
Dinner.



Attachments
Fairgrounds Use Application
2016 Rodeo Fee Waiver App
County Attorney's Comments



















Gila County Attorney’s Office 

Comments 

Request for Rental Fee Waiver for Vendor Appreciation Dinner and 
Rodeo 

 

The Gila County Rodeo Committee (“Committee”) has 
requested that the Gila County Board of Supervisors (“board”) waive 
the rental fees, $1,850.00, for use of certain Gila County Fairgrounds 
facilities for its annual vendor appreciation dinner and for its annual 
Copper Dust Stampede Rodeo.  In the application for waiving the 
fees, the Committee states that the general public purposes 
promoted by the Committee are: “Promote Rodeo in Southern Gila 
County;” and the specific public purpose to be advanced by these 
activities is: “Promote Rodeo.”  The Committee is a private entity 
which enjoys tax exempt status. 

 The question presented is whether a fee waiver to this private 
entity for these activities would violate the Gift Clause of the Arizona 
Constitution. Ariz. Const. art. 9, § 7: 

 

Neither the state, nor any county, city, town, 
municipality, or other subdivision of the state 
shall ever give or loan its credit in the aid of, or 
make any donation or grant, by subsidy or 
otherwise, to any individual, association, or 
corporation, or become a subscriber to, or a 
shareholder in, any company or corporation, or 
become a joint owner with any person, 
company, or corporation, except as to such 



ownerships as may accrue to the state by 
operation or provision of law or as authorized 
by law solely for investment of the monies in 
the various funds of the state. 

 
(Emphasis added.) 

 

 Governmental expenditure does not violate the Gift Clause if: 
1) it has a public purpose, and 2) in return for its expenditure, the 
governmental entity receives consideration that is not so 
inequitable and unreasonable that it amounts to an abuse of 
discretion, thus providing a forbidden subsidy to the private entity. 
Meyer v. Turken, 223 Ariz. 342, 224 .3d 158 (2010). 

 First the expenditure must be for a public purpose.  Cases 
interpreting public purpose have given it an expansive meaning.  Id.   
For example, the court, in Town of Gila Bend v. Walled Lake Door Co., 
107 Ariz. 545, 490 P.2d 551 (1971), found public purpose in the 
construction of a water line serving only one factory.  In Meyer, the 
court stated: “we have repeatedly emphasized that the primary 
determination of whether a specific purpose constitutes a ‘public 
purpose’ is assigned to the political branches of government, which 
are directly accountable to the public.” Absence of public purpose is 
found only in rare cases where the governmental body’s discretion 
has been unquestionably abused.  Id. 

 The purpose of these activities are to extend appreciation to 
the applicant’s vendors and to promote rodeo in southern Gila 
County. 



Second is the comparison of the consideration to be exchanged.  
“Consideration” is a performance or return promise that is 
bargained for in exchange for the promise of the other party; it is 
what one party to a contract obligates itself to do, or forbear from 
doing, in return for the promise of the other contracting party.  
Courts do not ordinarily examine the proportionality of 
consideration between parties contracting at arm’s length, leaving 
such issues to the marketplace.  However, in Gift Clause analysis, 
adequacy of consideration is examined because paying far too much 
for something creates a forbidden subsidy by the public.  The 
potential for a forbidden subsidy is heightened when a public entity 
enters into a contract without the benefit of competitive proposals. 
Id. 

In Meyer v. Turken, the court considered the agreement by the 
City of Phoenix to pay as much as $97.4 million to a developer to set 
aside 2,980 parking garage spaces for the non-exclusive use of the 
general public and 200 spaces for the exclusive use of drivers in 
commuting programs.  The payments by the city were conditioned 
on the developer constructing the garage spaces and at least 1.02 
million square feet of retail space.  The court said the comparison of 
what each party was giving could not include indirect benefits to be 
given by the developer such as the anticipated sales tax revenue, 
denser development, decreased pollution, and employment 
opportunities for city residents.  Only the “objective fair market 
value of what the private party has promised to provide in return 
for the public entity’s payment” could be considered.  “[T]he most 
objective and reliable way to determine whether the private party 
has received a forbidden subsidy is to compare the public 
expenditure to what the government receives under the contract.  



When government payment is grossly disproportionate to what is 
received in return, the payment violates the Gift Clause.” Id.  The 
court said the exchange likely violated the Gift Clause. 

The Committee is offering to obligate itself to provide a vendor 
appreciation dinner and a rodeo at the county facility in exchange 
for the county’s promise to waive the rental fees.    The benefit to the 
Committee is saving the rental fees.  No direct benefit to the county 
is mentioned.  There are no competitive proposals to the county. 

 Let us examine the consideration going both ways.  The 
objective fair market value given by the county is the normal rental 
fees: $1,850.00.  The objective fair market value of what the 
government receives directly in benefits is to be compared to that.  
The anticipated indirect benefits to the county of the value of 
activities being held at a county facility cannot be counted in the 
consideration analysis.  

Therefore, the duty of the board, to avoid violating the Gift 
Clause, is to make the following determinations: 

1. the Committee’s vendor appreciation dinner and rodeo 
being held at a county facility serves a public purpose, 

2. the objective fair market value of the direct benefits to the 
county of the activities being held at the county facility are 
not grossly disproportionate to the consideration given by 
the county, which is $1850.00. 
 



   

ARF-3650     Consent Agenda Item      3. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Kelly Jones, Administrative Clerk Specialist
Department: Public Works Division: Fairground Facilities

Information
Request/Subject
The 2016 Junior Class of Globe High School is requesting that the fees for the use of
the Exhibit Hall at the Gila County Fairgrounds be waived for the Junior/Senior Prom
that is to be held on April 23, 2016.

Background Information
The Globe High School Gym does not have sufficient space to hold the annual
Junior/Senior Prom, so the best location for the dance is the Gila County
Fairgrounds.  The Junior Class has the responsibility for putting on the Junior/Senior
Prom which includes coordinating fund-raiser events to pay for the decorations,
refreshments, hiring security personnel, etc. for the dance.

Evaluation
The Junior High Class is not a 501(C)(3) organization, although they certainly meet the
criteria of not for profit. The funds come entirely from the class fundraisers and any
cost of the building rental comes at the expense of other activities that the Class
sponsors.

Student sponsored events provide activities for the benefit of the students and the
community while also providing real life event planning and production experience for
the host class.  Schools are not able to pay for building rental for student events. The
Globe Unified School District does, however, often waive fees for use of their facilities
for community events.

Conclusion
Based on the above listed reasons, the 2016 Junior Class of Globe High School
respectfully requests that the fees are waived for the use of the Gila County
Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall for the School's 2016 Junior/Senior Prom.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the fees be waived to allow the students to have funds available
for other student sponsored events which provide activities for the benefit of the
students and the community while also providing real life event planning and
production experience for the host class.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a request submitted by the 2016 Junior Class of Globe High School to



Approval of a request submitted by the 2016 Junior Class of Globe High School to
waive fees for the use of the Gila County Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall for the School's
Junior/Senior Prom to be held on April 23, 2016.

Attachments
Prom FG App 2016
Prom Fee Waiver App 2016
Prom Letter 2016
Prom Layout 2016
Prom W9 form 2016
County Attorney Comments



























Gila County Attorney’s Office 

Comments 

March 7, 2016 

Request for Rental Fee Waiver for Class Prom 

 

The Globe High School Class of 2017 (“Class”) has requested 
that the Gila County Board of Supervisors (“board”) waive the rental 
fee of $1,075.00 for use of the Gila County Fairgrounds facilities for a 
Class Prom.  The application for waiving the fee states that the 
general public purposes promoted by the Class are ‘student 
government;’ and the specific public purposes to be promoted by 
the event are “Globe High School Prom.”  The Class is a private 
unincorporated association without formal legal status. 

 The question presented is whether a fee waiver to this private 
entity for this private activity would violate the Gift Clause of the 
Arizona Constitution. Ariz. Const. art. 9, § 7: 

 

Neither the state, nor any county, city, town, 
municipality, or other subdivision of the state 
shall ever give or loan its credit in the aid of, or 
make any donation or grant, by subsidy or 
otherwise, to any individual, association, or 
corporation, or become a subscriber to, or a 
shareholder in, any company or corporation, or 
become a joint owner with any person, 
company, or corporation, except as to such 
ownerships as may accrue to the state by 



operation or provision of law or as authorized 
by law solely for investment of the monies in 
the various funds of the state. 

 
(Emphasis added.) 

 

 Governmental expenditure does not violate the Gift Clause if: 
1) it has a public purpose, and 2) in return for its expenditure, the 
governmental entity receives consideration that is not so 
inequitable and unreasonable that it amounts to an abuse of 
discretion, thus providing a forbidden subsidy to the private entity. 
Meyer v. Turken, 223 Ariz. 342, 224 .3d 158 (2010). 

 First the expenditure must be for a public purpose.  Cases 
interpreting public purpose have given it an expansive meaning.  Id.   
For example, the court, in Town of Gila Bend v. Walled Lake Door Co., 
107 Ariz. 545, 490 P.2d 551 (1971), found public purpose in the 
construction of a water line serving only one factory.  In Meyer, the 
court stated: “we have repeatedly emphasized that the primary 
determination of whether a specific purpose constitutes a ‘public 
purpose’ is assigned to the political branches of government, which 
are directly accountable to the public.” Absence of public purpose is 
found only in rare cases where the governmental body’s discretion 
has been unquestionably abused.  Id. 

 The purpose of this activity is to hold a high school prom.  The 
letter from the Class president gives more specific purposes for the 
requested waiver: 1) the class being on a “tight budget” and 2) the 
desire to “have a school function out of the school area.” 



Second is the comparison of the consideration to be exchanged.  
“Consideration” is a performance or return promise that is 
bargained for in exchange for the promise of the other party; it is 
what one party to a contract obligates itself to do, or forbear from 
doing, in return for the promise of the other contracting party.  
Courts do not ordinarily examine the proportionality of 
consideration between parties contracting at arm’s length, leaving 
such issues to the marketplace.  However, in Gift Clause analysis, 
adequacy of consideration is examined because paying far too much 
for something creates a forbidden subsidy by the public.  The 
potential for a forbidden subsidy is heightened when a public entity 
enters into a contract without the benefit of competitive proposals. 
Id. 

In Meyer v. Turken, the court considered the agreement by the 
City of Phoenix to pay as much as $97.4 million to a developer to set 
aside 2,980 parking garage spaces for the non-exclusive use of the 
general public and 200 spaces for the exclusive use of drivers in 
commuting programs.  The payments by the city were conditioned 
on the developer constructing the garage spaces and at least 1.02 
million square feet of retail space.  The court said the comparison of 
what each party was giving could not include indirect benefits to be 
given by the developer such as the anticipated sales tax revenue, 
denser development, decreased pollution, and employment 
opportunities for city residents.  Only the “objective fair market 
value of what the private party has promised to provide in return 
for the public entity’s payment” could be considered.  “[T]he most 
objective and reliable way to determine whether the private party 
has received a forbidden subsidy is to compare the public 
expenditure to what the government receives under the contract.  



When government payment is grossly disproportionate to what is 
received in return, the payment violates the Gift Clause.” Id.  The 
court said the exchange likely violated the Gift Clause. 

The Class is offering to obligate itself to provide a prom at the 
county facility in exchange for the county’s promise to waive the 
rental fee.  The county is bargaining for the promise by the Class to 
provide a prom at the county facility.  The benefit to the Class is 
saving the rental fee for use for other Class activities and to be able 
to hold an activity away from the school.  No direct benefit to the 
county is mentioned.  There are no competitive proposals to the 
county. 

 Let us examine the consideration going both ways.  The 
objective fair market value of the normal rental fee is $1,075.00.  
The objective fair market value to the county of the prom being at a 
county facility is to be compared to that.  The anticipated indirect 
benefits to the county of the value of the prom being held at a county 
facility cannot be counted in the consideration analysis.  

Therefore, the duty of the board, to avoid violating the Gift 
Clause, is to make the following determinations: 

1. the prom being held at a county facility serves a public 
purpose, 

2. the objective fair market value of the direct benefits to the 
county of the prom being held at the county facility are not 
grossly disproportionate to the consideration given by the 
county, which is $1075.00. 
 
 



Insurance 

 Another issue that the board needs to address is the liability 
insurance. 

 The application for use of the fairgrounds requires the user to 
have a liability insurance policy that provides two million dollars in 
coverage.  The Class has a policy that provides one million dollars in 
liability coverage.   

 The board of supervisors would have to reduce the liability 
insurance coverage requirement from two million dollars to one 
million dollars in this instance in order for the Class to qualify to use 
the facility. 



   

ARF-3649     Consent Agenda Item      3. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Kelly Jones, Administrative Clerk Specialist
Department: Public Works Division: Fairground Facilities

Information
Request/Subject
Greater Grace Fellowship/Classic Celebrations County Payson Complex Grounds Use
Request.

Background Information
Greater Grace Fellowship/Classic Celebrations has used the Payson Courthouse
Complex grounds at 714 S. Beeline for the last 18 years for its 2 yearly art and crafts
fairs. This year they are requesting to use the grounds for the annual "Memorialfest"
on May 28-30, 2016, and "Autumnfest" on October 1-2, 2016. They have in the past
and will for these events provide liability insurance coverage. Night security, trash
bins, port-a-potties and clean up will be provided as in the past.

Evaluation
These events are beneficial to the community.

Conclusion
These events are beneficial to the community.

Recommendation
Supervisor District 1 Tommie Martin recommends that these events be approved.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a request submitted by the Greater Grace Fellowship/Classic Celebration's
non-profit organization to use the Payson Courthouse Complex grounds (parking lot)
for a "Memorialfest" craft show on May 28-30, 2016, and "Autumnfest" craft show on
October 1-2, 2016.

Attachments
Greater Grace App 2016
Greater Grace Letter 2016
Greater Grace Liability Waiver
Greater Grace Non Profit Proof 2016
Greater Grace Letter 2
County Attorney's Comment















Gila County Attorney’s Office 

Comments 

March 8, 2016 

Request for Permission to use Payson Courthouse Complex Grounds 

 

Greater Grace Fellowship, Inc. (“Fellowship”) has requested 
that the Gila County Board of Supervisors (“Board”) grant the use, at 
no charge, of the Payson Courthouse Complex Grounds and rest 
rooms (“Grounds”) for fundraisers.  The Fellowship’s purpose is to 
raise money for its foreign ministry. 

The question presented is whether a fee waiver to this private 
entity for these fundraisers would violate the Gift Clause of the 
Arizona Constitution. Ariz. Const. art. 9, § 7: 

 

Neither the state, nor any county, city, town, 
municipality, or other subdivision of the state 
shall ever give or loan its credit in the aid of, or 
make any donation or grant, by subsidy or 
otherwise, to any individual, association, or 
corporation, or become a subscriber to, or a 
shareholder in, any company or corporation, or 
become a joint owner with any person, 
company, or corporation, except as to such 
ownerships as may accrue to the state by 
operation or provision of law or as authorized 
by law solely for investment of the monies in 
the various funds of the state. 



 
(Emphasis added.) 

 

 Governmental expenditure does not violate the Gift Clause if: 
1) it has a public purpose, and 2) in return for its expenditure, the 
governmental entity receives consideration that is not so 
inequitable and unreasonable that it amounts to an abuse of 
discretion, thus providing a forbidden subsidy to the private entity. 
Meyer v. Turken, 223 Ariz. 342, 224 .3d 158 (2010). 

 First the expenditure must be for a public purpose.  Cases 
interpreting public purpose have given it an expansive meaning.  Id.   
For example, in Town of Gila Bend v. Walled Lake Door Co., 107 Ariz. 
545, 490 P.2d 551 (1971), the court found public purpose in 
constructing a water line serving only one factory, and in Humphrey 
v. City of Phoenix, 55 Ariz. 374, 102 P.2d 82 (1940), the court 
rejected a challenge to expenditures for slum clearance stating: 

[i]f it borne in mind that slum clearance 
projects are means adopted by society for self-
protection against crime and disease, and that 
money spent to prevent or eradicate these 
enemies is for the public good and general 
welfare, even though the effect is felt by a given 
class more than by the community at large, it 
will be realized the sums spent are not a gift or 
loan to anyone but an expenditure in the 
interests of the general public. 

 



 

In Meyer v. Turken, the court stated: “we have repeatedly 
emphasized that the primary determination of whether a specific 
purpose constitutes a ‘public purpose’ is assigned to the political 
branches of government, which are directly accountable to the 
public.” Absence of public purpose is found only in rare cases where 
the governmental body’s discretion has been unquestionably 
abused.  Id. 

 In this case, the Fellowship’s letters provide that the purpose of 
these fundraisers is: “for our overseas missions in India and 
Philippines,” and “helping youth in the Philippines, and Home in 
India for castaway children.”  Do fundraisers for the welfare of 
persons not within the county or country constitute a public 
purpose?  There are no Arizona cases answering this question.   

The second question is about the comparison of the 
consideration to be exchanged.  “Consideration” is a performance or 
return promise that is bargained for in exchange for the promise of 
the other party; it is what one party to a contract obligates itself to 
do, or forbear from doing, in return for the promise of the other 
contracting party.  Courts do not ordinarily examine the 
proportionality of consideration between parties contracting at 
arm’s length, leaving such issues to the marketplace.  However, in 
Gift Clause analysis, adequacy of consideration is examined because 
paying far too much for something creates a forbidden subsidy by 
the public.  The potential for a forbidden subsidy is heightened 
when a public entity enters into a contract without the benefit of 
competitive proposals. Id. 



In Meyer v. Turken, the court considered the agreement by the 
City of Phoenix to pay as much as $97.4 million to a developer to set 
aside 2,980 parking garage spaces for the non-exclusive use of the 
general public and 200 spaces for the exclusive use of drivers in 
commuting programs.  The payments by the city were conditioned 
on the developer constructing the garage spaces and at least 1.02 
million square feet of retail space.  Notably, the court stated that the 
indirect benefits arising from the project were not part of the 
consideration.  Indirect benefits such as the anticipated sales tax 
revenue, denser development, decreased pollution, and employment 
opportunities for city residents did not count in the consideration 
analysis.  Only the “objective fair market value of what the private 
party has promised to provide in return for the public entity’s 
payment” could be considered.  “[T]he most objective and reliable 
way to determine whether the private party has received a 
forbidden subsidy is to compare the public expenditure to what the 
government receives under the contract.  When government 
payment is grossly disproportionate to what is received in return, 
the payment violates the Gift Clause.” Id.  The court said the 
exchange in Meyer v. Turken likely violated the Gift Clause. 

The Fellowship is offering to obligate itself to provide two craft 
fairs on the Grounds in exchange for the county’s promise to let the 
Grounds out for no charge.  The benefit to the Fellowship is that 
there is no charge for the use.  The Fellowship provides a list of 
indirect benefits to be provided: “help the town of Payson and 
surrounding Gila County community, with sales tax dollars fuel, 
motels, food businesses, bringing additional revenue dollars to the 
areas (sic) economy.”  However, no direct benefit to the county is 
mentioned.  There are no competitive proposals to the county. 



 Let us examine the consideration going both ways.  The 
objective fair market value given by the county is the reasonable 
rental rate for Grounds.   The objective fair market value of what the 
government receives directly in benefits is to be compared to that.  
The anticipated indirect benefits to the county of the value of 
activities being held at the Grounds cannot be counted in the 
consideration analysis.  

Therefore, the duty of the board, to avoid violating the Gift 
Clause, is to make the following determinations: 

1. the Fellowship’s craft fairs serve a public purpose, 
2. the objective fair market value of the direct benefits to the 

county of the activities to be held at the Grounds are not 
grossly disproportionate to the consideration given by the 
county, which is the reasonable rental value of the Grounds. 
 



   

ARF-3641     Consent Agenda Item      3. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard 

Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Lion's Club Special Event Liquor License application for April 16, 2016.

Background Information
A qualified organization may submit an application to serve liquor at a special event for
up to 10 days per year.  The Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control
(DLLC) approves all liquor-related applications; however, part of the DLLC's process
requires that the local governing body review the application and submit a
recommendation for approval or disapproval to the DLLC for any establishment
located within the jurisdiction of that local governing body.

Evaluation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has reviewed the attached application and has
determined that it has been filled out correctly.

Conclusion
This civic organization properly completed the application.  If the Board of Supervisors
approves this application and final approval is given by the DLLC, the Lion's Club of
Globe, Arizona, will have used 1 day of the allowable 10 days to serve liquor at a
special event in 2016.

Recommendation
The Clerk recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this application to allow
the Lion's Club of Globe to serve liquor at a fund raising event.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Special Event Liquor License application submitted by the Lion's Club of
Globe, Arizona, Inc. to serve liquor at a fund raising event on April 16, 2016.

Attachments
Lion's Club Special Event Liquor License Application 











   
ARF-3656     Consent Agenda Item      3. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  
Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Quit Claim Deed for the Sale of Assessor's Tax Parcel No. 206-22-073.

Background Information
On May 26, 2015, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No.
15-05-05 which outlines the policy and procedures for the sale of land
held by the State of Arizona under tax deed.  The procedures allow the
Clerk of the Board to sell these parcels over the counter for the total lien
amount.  A separate $15 fee is required to be paid by the purchaser in
order to record the Quit Claim Deed.  The procedures also state that a
consent agenda action item will be submitted to the Board of Supervisors
on a regular meeting agenda to obtain authorization from the Board for
the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed. 

Assessor's tax parcel number 206-22-073 was deeded to the State of
Arizona in 2015.  It did not sell at the Board of Supervisors' annual tax
sale/auction; therefore, it was added to the list of properties that could be
purchased year-round for the total lien amount.  This property is located
on 861 W. Merritt Street in Miami, Arizona.  It contains a duplex that
currently has occupants.

Evaluation
On February 26, 2016, the Deputy Clerk of the Board deposited a check
from Joshua Sulwer and Savannah Jewell in the amount of $3,037.76
with the Gila County Treasurer for the purchase of the subject property. 
The amount paid was the total lien amount.  A separate check in the
amount of $15 was also submitted to record the Quit Claim Deed.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors needs to authorize the Chairman's signature on



The Board of Supervisors needs to authorize the Chairman's signature on
the Quit Claim Deed so that it can be recorded and later mailed to Joshua
Sulwer and Savannah Jewell.  Once the deed has been finalized and
recorded, the property will go back on the County's tax rolls.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board recommends that the Board of Supervisors
authorize the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed for the sale of
Assessor's tax parcel number 206-22-073 to Joshua Sulwer and
Savannah Jewell.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed for the
sale of Assessor's tax parcel number 206-22-073 to Joshua Sulwer and
Savannah Jewell.

Attachments
Quit Claim Deed 206-22-073





   
ARF-3664     Consent Agenda Item      3. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  
Submitted By: Marian

Sheppard,
Clerk of the
Board

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Quit Claim Deed for Sale of Assessor's Tax Parcel No. 304-14-004-G

Background Information
On May 26, 2015, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No.
15-05-05 which outlines the policy and procedures for the sale of land
held by the State of Arizona under tax deed.  The procedures allow the
Clerk of the Board to sell these parcels over the counter for the total lien
amount.  A separate $15 fee is required to be paid by the purchaser in
order to record the Quit Claim Deed.  The procedures also state that a
consent agenda action item will be submitted to the Board of Supervisors
on a regular meeting agenda to obtain authorization from the Board for
the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed. 

Assessor's tax parcel number 304-14-004G was deeded to the State of
Arizona in 2012.  It did not sell at the Board of Supervisors' annual tax
sale/auction; therefore, it was added to the list of properties that could be
purchased year-round for the total lien amount.  The subject property
contains an old well site on Forest Service land in Payson that has not
been in use.  It's located by Main Street and Peach Orchard Road, and
across the street from the Payson Golf Course.

Evaluation
On March 7, 2016, the Clerk of the Board deposited a cashier's check
from Hannelore R. Inman in the amount of $438.32 with the Gila County
Treasurer for the purchase of the subject property.  The amount paid was
the total lien amount.  A separate check in the amount of $15 was also
submitted to record the Quit Claim Deed.

Conclusion



The Board of Supervisors needs to authorize the Chairman's signature on
the Quit Claim Deed for the sale of Assessor's tax parcel number
304-14-004-G so that it can be recorded and later mailed to Ms. Inman. 
Once the deed has been finalized and recorded, it will go back on the
County's tax rolls.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board recommends that the Board of Supervisors
authorize the Chairman's signature on a Quit Claim Deed to finalize the
sale of the subject property to Hannelore R. Inman.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed for the
sale of Assessor's tax parcel number 304-14-004-G to Hannelore R.
Inman.

Attachments
Quit Claim Deed 304-14-004-G



Page 1 of 2 
 

When recorded return to:     
Marian Sheppard, Clerk 
Gila County Board of Supervisors 

 
 

 GILA COUNTY QUIT-CLAIM DEED 
                                                                                                                                                   

THIS QUIT CLAIM DEED, made this day 15th day of March 2016, between the State of Arizona, by 
and through the Gila County Board of Supervisors, Grantor, and Hannelore R. Inman, a single woman, 
Grantee.  

 
Address of Grantee:  P.O. Box 181333, Coronado, CA  92178 
 
 RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the real property hereinafter described was conveyed to the State of Arizona by 

Treasurer's Deed for the non-payment of taxes, which taxes had been legally assessed against, and 
became a lien upon, said property according to law; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors, on behalf of the State of Arizona, advertised and 
offered said property for sale to the highest bidder for cash in accordance with A.R.S. §42-18302 and 42-
18303; and 

  
WHEREAS, on the 7th day of March 2016, Grantee did purchase said property for the sum of  

$438.32; 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, Grantor does hereby quit-claim to Grantee, 
the following described real property situated in the County of Gila, State of Arizona. 
 

 Assessor’s Tax Parcel Number:  304-14-004-G 
  

Legal Description:  WELL SITE PT LOT 3 SEC 8 T10N R10E BEG SW COR LOT 3; TH S 89° 16’, E 326.15’; 
TH N O° 44’, E 20.0’ TO POB; TH N 89° 16’, W 20.0’; TH N O° 44’, E 22.8’; TH S 89° 16’, E 20.0’; TH S O° 
44’, W 22.8’ TO POB. 

  
 Exempt from Affidavit of Property Value pursuant to A.R.S. §11-1134 (A) (3) 

 
Grantor:              Attest: 

  
 
_________________________________    ______________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman         Marian Sheppard, Clerk 
Gila County Board of Supervisors        Gila County Board of Supervisors 

             
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
     ) SS      ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
COUNTY OF GILA    )       

  
 
Before me, Laurie J. Kline, a Notary Public in and for the County of Gila, State of Arizona, on this 15th day of 
March 2016, personally appeared Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Board of Supervisors, Gila County, Arizona, 
known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged 
to me that he executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein expressed. 

 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Notary Public 

                 My Commission Expires:                   



   
ARF-3645     Consent Agenda Item      3. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  
Submitted For: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director 
Submitted By: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director
Department: Human Resources 

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of changes to Gila County Policy No. BOS-HRS-610 -
Disciplinary Action.

Background Information
Gila County is in the process of updating and converting all of the Rules
in the Merit System Rules and Policies to Policies to be placed in the
Countywide Policy Manual.

Rule No. 21 was updated and converted to Policy No.
BOS-HRS-610-Disciplinary Actions by the Board on January 5, 2016.

Evaluation
After updating and converting Policy No. BOS-HRS-610-Disciplinary
Actions, the Sheriff’s Office contacted Human Resources and requested
that the wording under IV. Procedures, A. General, 2., regarding the
Sheriff’s Office be removed. This paragraph is not found under the
Sheriff’s Office policies and procedures or under Arizona Revised Statutes
§38-1101 through §38-1114 for Public Safety Officers. Human Resources
agrees the deletion of this paragraph would keep the policies consistent
throughout all Gila County departments and elected offices.

Conclusion
This revision is not changing the intent of Policy No. BOS-HRS-610, but
will properly reflect the Gila County Sheriff's Office policies and
procedures.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve revised Gila



Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve revised Gila
County Policy No. BOS-HRS-610 - Disciplinary Action by eliminating the
wording in IV. A. 2. regarding Sheriff's Office employees being placed
on administrative leave when charged with a felony offense.

Suggested Motion
Approval of changes to Gila County Policy No. BOS-HRS-610 -
Disciplinary Action regarding disciplinary actions in the Sheriff's Office.

Attachments
BOS -HRS-610 Disciplinary Action 03-15-2016
BOS -HRS-610 Disciplinary Action Correction



Gila County Human Resources 

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-610 

Replaces:  Rule #21 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016
Revised:  03-15-2016

1 of 6 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-610 

I. PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to establish a process of progressive discipline. Progressive 

discipline is designed to provide a structured corrective action process to improve and 

prevent a recurrence of undesirable employee behavior and performance issues. Such a 

process ensures that employees are afforded adequate notice and opportunity to correct 

unacceptable behavior.  

II. APPLICABILITY:

This policy applies to all Gila County employees except Elected Officials. 

III. POLICY:

Gila County wishes to create and maintain a work environment that promotes efficiency, 

productivity, and positive reinforcement of actions through work standards met or exceeded.  

The County advocates the use of progressive discipline as a means toward maintaining a 

positive work environment. However, the seriousness of an offense may dictate overriding 

progressive discipline, and serious offenses may lead to administrative suspension or 

immediate dismissal. When circumstances dictate, a combination of disciplinary actions may 

be used. 

SIGNATURE: 

_____________________________________ _________________________ 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS      DATE 



Gila County Human Resources 

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-610 

Replaces:  Rule #21 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised:  03-15-2016 

2 of 6 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-610 

IV. PROCEDURES:

A. General 

1. Causes for disciplinary actions include, but are not limited to:

a. Fraud in securing appointment;

b. Incompetence;

c. Neglect of duty;

d. Insubordination;

e. Sleeping while on duty;

f. Disorderly conduct;

g. Malicious gossip or false accusations which tend to destroy friendly relations

between the County and the public or between employees or in any way hinder

County operations;

h. Dishonesty;

i. Absence without leave;

j. Commission or conviction of a felony or misdemeanor involving moral turpitude

which would affect the employee’s suitability for continued employment;

k. Discourteous treatment of the public and/or co-workers;

l. Willful disobedience;

m. Engaging in prohibited political activity;

n. Misuse of government property;

o. Possessing, dispensing or being under the influence of a narcotic, barbiturate,

marijuana, tranquilizing or hallucinogenic drug, alcohol, or other controlled

substances on duty, except in accordance with medical authorization;

p. Seeking to obtain financial, sexual or political benefit from another employee

with his/her consent induced by wrongful use of force or fear, or under color of

official right;

q. Discrimination or harassment based upon race, color, religion, sex (including

pregnancy), national origin, age (40 or older), disability, genetic information, or

Vietnam era or disabled veteran status;

r. Revocation, suspension or loss of Arizona driving privileges where having an

Arizona Driver’s License is a requirement for the position;

s. Revocation, suspension or loss of certification issued by a governmental entity

where such certification is a requirement for the position;

t. Engaging in sexual harassment of an employee;

u. Inefficiency;

v. Unsatisfactory attendance;

w. Mishandling of County funds;



Gila County Human Resources 

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-610 

Replaces:  Rule #21 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016
Revised:  03-15-2016

3 of 6 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-610 

x. Falsification or unauthorized use of County records;

y. Unauthorized possession of firearms, weapons or explosives on County property;

z. Unsafe actions;

aa. Any other conduct or performance which constitutes cause for disciplinary action. 

B. Types of Disciplinary Action 

Behavior that is illegal or violent will not be subject to the progressive discipline process 

and may be reported to local law enforcement agencies. All disciplinary actions must be 

discussed with Human Resources (HR) prior to implementing the disciplinary action. All 

disciplinary actions must be documented and the original sent to HR to be placed in the 

employee’s file.  

1. Verbal Warning

A verbal warning creates an opportunity to bring attention to existing 

performance, conduct, or attendance issues with the employee. Expectations and 

steps that must be taken to improve performance or resolve the issue should be 

discussed here. Verbal warnings must be documented and sent to HR. 

2. Written Reprimand

A written reprimand is a formal notice to an employee that further disciplinary 

action will be taken unless their behavior or performance improves.  A copy of 

the written reprimand is to be forwarded to the HR Department for placement into 

the employee's personnel file. A Performance Improvement Plan (PIP) may be 

applicable to assist the employee in meeting expectations.  

3. Suspension

a. Before an employee with regular status can be suspended, the Appointing

Authority shall give the employee written notice of the charges, a summary of the

Appointing Authority’s basis for the charges, and an opportunity for the employee

to present a written response.  The employee’s response shall be made not later

than three working days after the employee receives the notice of the charges,

unless extended in writing by the Appointing Authority.

b. The Appointing Authority may suspend any employee with regular status for

cause, but not before attempting to serve the employee personally or by registered

or certified mail, return receipt requested (addressee only), with written notice of

the specific reasons for suspension in sufficient detail to inform the employee of

the facts, with a copy to the Director.  The Appointing Authority shall include a



Gila County Human Resources 

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-610 

Replaces:  Rule #21 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised:  03-15-2016 

4 of 6 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-610 

statement of the employee’s right to appeal.  The action is not effective until one 

of the following occurs:  

i. The employee signs for receipt of the suspension letter personally served or

served by mail; or,

ii. Three working days have passed since the letter was mailed to the employee;

or,

iii. An attempt is made to personally serve the suspension letter, but the employee

refuses to sign for the letter.  Such attempt to personally serve the letter shall

be witnessed.

c. Except as otherwise provided by statute or policy, suspensions shall not exceed a

total of thirty working days during any twelve (12) month period.  The twelve

(12) month period begins with the first day of the first suspension.

4. Demotion

a. A regular status employee may be demoted for cause by an Appointing Authority

to any regular status position, provided the employee meets the minimum

qualifications for such class.

b. Before an employee with regular status can be demoted, the Appointing Authority

shall give the employee written notice of the charges, a summary of the

Appointing Authority’s basis for the charges, and an opportunity for the employee

to present a written response.  The employee’s response shall be made not later

than three working days after the employee receives notice of the charges, unless

extended in writing by the Appointing Authority.

c. The Appointing Authority may demote any employee with regular status only for

cause, but not before attempting to serve the employee personally or by registered

or certified mail, return receipt requested (addressee only), with written notice of

the specific reasons for demotion in sufficient detail to inform the employee of the

facts, with a copy to the Director.  The Appointing Authority shall include a

statement of the employee’s right to appeal.  The action is not effective until one

of the following occurs:

i. The employee signs for receipt of the demotion letter personally served or

served by mail; or



Gila County Human Resources 

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-610 

Replaces:  Rule #21 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised:  03-15-2016 

5 of 6 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-610 

ii. Three working days have passed since the letter was mailed to the employee;

or

iii. An attempt is made to personally serve the demotion letter, but the employee

refuses to sign for the letter.  Such attempt to personally serve the letter shall

be witnessed.

d. An employee who is demoted shall serve a demotion probationary period under

the same rules as an original probation, except that the employee retains the right

of appeal should they be dismissed due to failure of the demotion probationary

period.

5. Dismissal

Recommendations for dismissal must be approved by the Human Resources 

Director before the following steps occur:  

a. Before an employee with regular status can be dismissed, the Appointing

Authority shall give the employee written notice of the charges, a summary of the

Appointing Authority’s basis for the charges, and an opportunity for the employee

to present a written response.  The employee’s response shall be made not later

than three working days after the employee receives notice of the charges, unless

extended in writing by the Appointing Authority.

b. The Appointing Authority may dismiss any employee with regular status for

cause, but not before attempting to serve the employee personally or by registered

or certified mail, return receipt requested (addressee only), with written notice of

the specific reasons for dismissal in sufficient detail to inform the employee of the

facts, with a copy to the Director.  The Appointing Authority shall include a

statement of the employee’s right to appeal.  The action is not effective until one

of the following occurs:

i. The employee signs for receipt of the dismissal letter personally served or

served by mail; or

ii. Three working days have passed since the letter was mailed to the employee;

or

iii. An attempt is made to personally serve the dismissal letter, but the employee

refuses to sign for the letter.  Such attempt to personally serve the letter shall

be witnessed.



Gila County Human Resources 

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-610 

Replaces:  Rule #21 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised:  03-15-2016 

6 of 6 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-610 

c. If an employee is on an approved period of leave with pay, the action will be

effective at the end of the approved period of leave with pay, and the dismissal

letter shall be served on the employee in accordance with this subsection.

d. Dismissal During Probation

i. An employee on original probation may be dismissed without the right of

appeal.

ii. An employee on promotional probation may not be dismissed without the

right of appeal.

6. Administrative Leave

Nothing in this policy shall preclude the Appointing Authority from immediately 

placing an employee on administrative leave pending implementation of procedures 

under this section, but no pay shall be withheld for such period. 



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS  

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-610 

 

Replaces:  Rule #21 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

1 of 6 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-610  
 

 

 

I. PURPOSE:  

 

The purpose of this policy is to establish a process of progressive discipline. Progressive 

discipline is designed to provide a structured corrective action process to improve and 

prevent a recurrence of undesirable employee behavior and performance issues. Such a 

process ensures that employees are afforded adequate notice and opportunity to correct 

unacceptable behavior.  

 

II. APPLICABILITY:   

 

This policy applies to all Gila County employees except Elected Officials. 

 

III. POLICY: 

 

Gila County wishes to create and maintain a work environment that promotes efficiency, 

productivity, and positive reinforcement of actions through work standards met or exceeded.  

The County advocates the use of progressive discipline as a means toward maintaining a 

positive work environment. However, the seriousness of an offense may dictate overriding 

progressive discipline, and serious offenses may lead to administrative suspension or 

immediate dismissal. When circumstances dictate, a combination of disciplinary actions may 

be used. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SIGNATURE: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________  _________________________ 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS        DATE 

 



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS  

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-610 

 

Replaces:  Rule #21 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

2 of 6 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-610  
 

 

 

 

IV. PROCEDURES: 

 

A. General 

 

1. Causes for disciplinary actions include, but are not limited to: 

 

a. Fraud in securing appointment; 

b. Incompetence; 

c. Neglect of duty; 

d. Insubordination; 

e. Sleeping while on duty; 

f. Disorderly conduct; 

g. Malicious gossip or false accusations which tend to destroy friendly relations 

between the County and the public or between employees or in any way hinder 

County operations; 

h. Dishonesty; 

i. Absence without leave; 

j. Commission or conviction of a felony or misdemeanor involving moral turpitude 

which would affect the employee’s suitability for continued employment; 

k. Discourteous treatment of the public and/or co-workers; 

l. Willful disobedience; 

m. Engaging in prohibited political activity; 

n. Misuse of government property; 

o. Possessing, dispensing or being under the influence of a narcotic, barbiturate, 

marijuana, tranquilizing or hallucinogenic drug, alcohol, or other controlled 

substances on duty, except in accordance with medical authorization; 

p. Seeking to obtain financial, sexual or political benefit from another employee 

with his/her consent induced by wrongful use of force or fear, or under color of 

official right; 

q. Discrimination or harassment based upon race, color, religion, sex (including 

pregnancy), national origin, age (40 or older), disability, genetic information, or 

Vietnam era or disabled veteran status; 

r. Revocation, suspension or loss of Arizona driving privileges where having an 

Arizona Driver’s License is a requirement for the position; 

s. Revocation, suspension or loss of certification issued by a governmental entity 

where such certification is a requirement for the position; 

t. Engaging in sexual harassment of an employee; 

u. Inefficiency; 

v. Unsatisfactory attendance; 

w. Mishandling of County funds; 



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS  

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-610 

 

Replaces:  Rule #21 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

3 of 6 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-610  
 

x. Falsification or unauthorized use of County records; 

y. Unauthorized possession of firearms, weapons or explosives on County property; 

z. Unsafe actions; 

aa. Any other conduct or performance which constitutes cause for disciplinary action. 

 

2. Sworn law enforcement officers employed by the Sheriff’s Office shall be subject to 

being placed on administrative leave with or without pay consistent with these 

policies upon being formally charged with the commission of a felony offense. 

 

B. Types of Disciplinary Action 

 

Behavior that is illegal or violent will not be subject to the progressive discipline process 

and may be reported to local law enforcement agencies. All disciplinary actions must be 

discussed with Human Resources (HR) prior to implementing the disciplinary action. All 

disciplinary actions must be documented and the original sent to HR to be placed in the 

employee’s file.  

 

1. Verbal Warning 

 

A verbal warning creates an opportunity to bring attention to existing 

performance, conduct, or attendance issues with the employee. Expectations and 

steps that must be taken to improve performance or resolve the issue should be 

discussed here. Verbal warnings must be documented and sent to HR. 

 

2. Written Reprimand 

 

A written reprimand is a formal notice to an employee that further disciplinary 

action will be taken unless their behavior or performance improves.  A copy of 

the written reprimand is to be forwarded to the HR Department for placement into 

the employee's personnel file. A Performance Improvement Plan (PIP) may be 

applicable to assist the employee in meeting expectations.   

 

3. Suspension 

 

a. Before an employee with regular status can be suspended, the Appointing 

Authority shall give the employee written notice of the charges, a summary of the 

Appointing Authority’s basis for the charges, and an opportunity for the employee 

to present a written response.  The employee’s response shall be made not later 

than three working days after the employee receives the notice of the charges, 

unless extended in writing by the Appointing Authority. 

 

b. The Appointing Authority may suspend any employee with regular status for 

cause, but not before attempting to serve the employee personally or by registered 



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS  

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-610 

 

Replaces:  Rule #21 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

4 of 6 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-610  
 

or certified mail, return receipt requested (addressee only), with written notice of 

the specific reasons for suspension in sufficient detail to inform the employee of 

the facts, with a copy to the Director.  The Appointing Authority shall include a 

statement of the employee’s right to appeal.  The action is not effective until one 

of the following occurs:  

 

i. The employee signs for receipt of the suspension letter personally served or 

served by mail; or, 

 

ii. Three working days have passed since the letter was mailed to the employee; 

or, 

 

iii. An attempt is made to personally serve the suspension letter, but the employee 

refuses to sign for the letter.  Such attempt to personally serve the letter shall 

be witnessed. 

 

c. Except as otherwise provided by statute or policy, suspensions shall not exceed a 

total of thirty working days during any twelve (12) month period.  The twelve 

(12) month period begins with the first day of the first suspension. 

 

4. Demotion 

 

a. A regular status employee may be demoted for cause by an Appointing Authority 

to any regular status position, provided the employee meets the minimum 

qualifications for such class.  

 

b. Before an employee with regular status can be demoted, the Appointing Authority 

shall give the employee written notice of the charges, a summary of the 

Appointing Authority’s basis for the charges, and an opportunity for the employee 

to present a written response.  The employee’s response shall be made not later 

than three working days after the employee receives notice of the charges, unless 

extended in writing by the Appointing Authority. 

 

c. The Appointing Authority may demote any employee with regular status only for 

cause, but not before attempting to serve the employee personally or by registered 

or certified mail, return receipt requested (addressee only), with written notice of 

the specific reasons for demotion in sufficient detail to inform the employee of the 

facts, with a copy to the Director.  The Appointing Authority shall include a 

statement of the employee’s right to appeal.  The action is not effective until one 

of the following occurs: 

 



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS  

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-610 

 

Replaces:  Rule #21 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

5 of 6 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-610  
 

i. The employee signs for receipt of the demotion letter personally served or 

served by mail; or 

 

ii. Three working days have passed since the letter was mailed to the employee; 

or 

 

iii. An attempt is made to personally serve the demotion letter, but the employee 

refuses to sign for the letter.  Such attempt to personally serve the letter shall 

be witnessed. 

 

d. An employee who is demoted shall serve a demotion probationary period under 

the same rules as an original probation, except that the employee retains the right 

of appeal should they be dismissed due to failure of the demotion probationary 

period. 

 

5. Dismissal 

 

Recommendations for dismissal must be approved by the Human Resources 

Director before the following steps occur:  

 

a. Before an employee with regular status can be dismissed, the Appointing 

Authority shall give the employee written notice of the charges, a summary of the 

Appointing Authority’s basis for the charges, and an opportunity for the employee 

to present a written response.  The employee’s response shall be made not later 

than three working days after the employee receives notice of the charges, unless 

extended in writing by the Appointing Authority. 

 

b. The Appointing Authority may dismiss any employee with regular status for 

cause, but not before attempting to serve the employee personally or by registered 

or certified mail, return receipt requested (addressee only), with written notice of 

the specific reasons for dismissal in sufficient detail to inform the employee of the 

facts, with a copy to the Director.  The Appointing Authority shall include a 

statement of the employee’s right to appeal.  The action is not effective until one 

of the following occurs: 

 

i. The employee signs for receipt of the dismissal letter personally served or 

served by mail; or 

 

ii. Three working days have passed since the letter was mailed to the employee; 

or 

 



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS  

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-610 

 

Replaces:  Rule #21 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

6 of 6 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-610  
 

iii. An attempt is made to personally serve the dismissal letter, but the employee 

refuses to sign for the letter.  Such attempt to personally serve the letter shall 

be witnessed. 

 

c. If an employee is on an approved period of leave with pay, the action will be 

effective at the end of the approved period of leave with pay, and the dismissal 

letter shall be served on the employee in accordance with this subsection. 

 

d. Dismissal During Probation 

 

i. An employee on original probation may be dismissed without the right of 

appeal. 

 

ii. An employee on promotional probation may not be dismissed without the 

right of appeal. 

 

6. Administrative Leave 

 

Nothing in this policy shall preclude the Appointing Authority from immediately 

placing an employee on administrative leave pending implementation of procedures 

under this section, but no pay shall be withheld for such period. 

  

 

 

 

 

 



   
ARF-3646     Consent Agenda Item      3. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  
Submitted For: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director 
Submitted By: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director
Department: Human Resources 

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of changes to Gila County Policy No. BOS-HRS-625-Personnel
Commission.

Background Information
Gila County is in the process of updating and converting all of the Rules
in the Merit System Rules and Policies to Policies to be placed in the
Countywide Policy Manual.

Rule No. 3 was updated and converted to Policy No.
BOS-HRS-625-Personnel Commission by the Board of Supervisors on
January 5, 2016.

Evaluation
In updating Policy No. BOS-HRS-625-Personnel Commission, an attempt
was made to ensure the Commission had any and all information
necessary to assist them in the deliberation of employee appeals,
including all policies and statutes pertinent to Gila County employees. It
was an error; however, to include any departments under the purview of
the Gila County Superior Courts, as all appeals for Probation and
Superior Court employees fall under the State of Arizona. Therefore, it
would be appropriate to remove all references to any policies, procedures,
and statutes for the Gila County Superior Court and Probation
departments from this policy.

Conclusion
These revisions are not changing the intent of Policy No. BOS-HRS-625,
but will reflect the correct County departments and elected offices that are
subject to the oversight of the Personnel Commission.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve revised Gila



Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve revised Gila
County Policy No. BOS-HRS-625-Personnel Commission by eliminating
the wording in Section IV. Procedures regarding the Adult and Juvenile
Probation Officers Statutes and the Superior Court's Merit Rules and
Policies.

Suggested Motion
Approval of changes to Gila County Policy No. BOS-HRS-625 - Personnel
Commission regarding Adult and Juvenile Probation statutes and the
Superior Court Merit Rules.

Attachments
BOS-HRS-625 Personnel Commission 03-15-2016
BOS-HRS-625 Personnel Commission Corrections



Gila County Human Resources 

PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-625 

Replaces:  Rule # 3 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised:  03-15-2016 

1 of 3 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-625 

I. PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to establish the Gila County Personnel Commission 

(Commission), identify the Commission’s authority, and set forth the situations under which 

eligible employees may appeal employment actions the employee deems to be adverse.  

II. APPLICABILITY:

This policy applies to all classified Gila County employees. 

III. POLICY:

It is the policy of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to appoint a Personnel Commission,

a five-member independent body of private citizens to provide an appeal process to County

employees who believe they have been involved in an adverse employment action. The

Commission is responsible for reviewing and understanding the precepts of Gila County

employment, retention and promotion for all classified employees to ensure it meets the

standards of the Gila County Merit System.

SIGNATURE: 

_____________________________________  _________________________ 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  DATE 



Gila County Human Resources 

PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-625 

Replaces:  Rule # 3 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016
Revised:  03-15-2016

2 of 3 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-625 

IV. PROCEDURES:

The Board of Supervisors (Board) shall appoint a Personnel Commission to assist in the 

County’s personnel administration system.  

The Commission shall consist of five members, each of whom shall hold office for a term of 

four years or until a successor is appointed and qualified. The Commission serves as an 

independent advisory board established to hear appeals from eligible employees about 

specific adverse employment actions.  

Members of the Commission are selected from among the qualified electors of the County 

and shall be generally familiar with Human Resources policies and procedures. No more than 

three (3) of such members shall be from the same political party. At least one (1) member 

shall have prior work experience in the law enforcement or probation field. 

Each member shall hold office for a term of four (4) years or until his successor is appointed 

and qualified. Of the members first appointed, two (2) shall serve for a two (2) year term, two 

(2) for a three (3) year term, and one shall serve a four (4) year term, and such members shall 

determine, by lot, the length of their terms. Appointment to fill a vacancy caused by other 

than expiration of term shall be for the unexpired portion of the term. A member of the 

Commission may be removed by the Board for cause. Any one of the following shall 

constitute the resignation of a Commissioner and authorize the Board to appoint a new 

member to fill the unexpired term so vacated: 

 Absence from three (3) consecutive meetings;

 Becoming a candidate for any elected public office; or,

 Accepting any appointive office or employment in County service.

The Commission shall elect one (1) of its members as the Chairperson on an annual basis, 

changing who serves as Chairperson each year. The Chairperson shall also be willing to 

serve on other local boards within the County that are required, by statute, to be represented 

by the “head of the merit system” and which are appointed by the Board of Supervisors. 

Three (3) members shall be present to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. A 

majority of the commission membership shall constitute a majority vote. 

The Commission shall become familiar with and perform duties as are necessary to carry out 

the provisions of the Gila County Merit Rules, Human Resources policies, the Arizona 

Revised Statute (A.R.S.) Title 38, et seq., for Public Safety Officers (A.R.S. 38-1101 through 

38-1114), the Gila County Sheriff’s Office Policy and Procedure Manual, and other adopted 

policies of the County. In addition, the Commission may assist the Board of Supervisors in 

the following areas: 



Gila County Human Resources 

PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-625 

Replaces:  Rule # 3 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised:  03-15-2016
3 of 3 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-625 

A. Making recommendations on Human Resources policies with the goal of improving 

understanding, consistent application, and the efficient operation of County government; 

B. Making recommendations to the Board and Human Resources Director (Director) of 

problems concerning personnel administration; 

C. Making recommendations to assist in the fostering of interest in the best practices of 

institutions of learning and of civic, professional, and employee organizations in order to 

improve personnel standards in the County service; and, 

D. Making annual reports, and such special reports as the Commission considers desirable to 

the Board regarding personnel administration in the County service and recommendations for 

improvements. 

The Commission shall hold meetings in accordance with the Arizona Open Meeting laws 

A.R.S. §38-431, et seq.  The Commission shall meet at such times and places as shall be 

specified by call of a majority of the Commission or by the Chairperson. 

Further: 

 All meetings shall be open to the public;

 At least five (5) days’ written notice of each meeting shall be given by the

Director to each member not joining in the call for a meeting; and,

 Three (3) members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

All matters to be presented for consideration by the Commission at a regular or special 

meeting shall be placed on the Commission’s agenda without undue delay. The agenda shall 

be electronically mailed to each member of the Commission and shall be posted in 

accordance with A.R.S. §38-431.02, no less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting. 

The Director shall provide for the recording of the official actions of the Commission in its 

minutes. The time and place of each meeting of the Commission, the commissioners present, 

all official acts of the Commission and, when requested, a commissioner’s dissent and the 

reasons for the dissent shall be recorded in the minutes. The Director shall cause the minutes 

to be transcribed and presented for approval or amendment at the next meeting. The minutes, 

or a true copy thereof, shall be open to public inspection.  



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

 

PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-625 

 

Replaces:  Rule # 3 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

1 of 3 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-625  
 

I. PURPOSE:  

 

The purpose of this policy is to establish the Gila County Personnel Commission 

(Commission), identify the Commission’s authority, and set forth the situations under which 

eligible employees may appeal employment actions the employee deems to be adverse.  

 

II. APPLICABILITY:   

 

This policy applies to all classified Gila County employees. 

 

III. POLICY: 

It is the policy of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to appoint a Personnel Commission, 

a five-member independent body of private citizens to provide an appeal process to County 

employees who believe they have been involved in an adverse employment action. The 

Commission is responsible for reviewing and understanding the precepts of Gila County 

employment, retention and promotion for all classified employees to ensure it meets the 

standards of the Gila County Merit System. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SIGNATURE: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________    _________________________ 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS    DATE 

  



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

 

PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-625 

 

Replaces:  Rule # 3 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

2 of 3 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-625  
 

IV. PROCEDURES: 

 

The Board of Supervisors (Board) shall appoint a Personnel Commission to assist in the 

County’s personnel administration system.  

 

The Commission shall consist of five members, each of whom shall hold office for a term of 

four years or until a successor is appointed and qualified. The Commission serves as an 

independent advisory board established to hear appeals from eligible employees about 

specific adverse employment actions.  

 

Members of the Commission are selected from among the qualified electors of the County 

and shall be generally familiar with Human Resources policies and procedures. No more than 

three (3) of such members shall be from the same political party. At least one (1) member 

shall have prior work experience in the law enforcement or probation field. 

 

Each member shall hold office for a term of four (4) years or until his successor is appointed 

and qualified. Of the members first appointed, two (2) shall serve for a two (2) year term, two 

(2) for a three (3) year term, and one shall serve a four (4) year term, and such members shall 

determine, by lot, the length of their terms. Appointment to fill a vacancy caused by other 

than expiration of term shall be for the unexpired portion of the term. A member of the 

Commission may be removed by the Board for cause. Any one of the following shall 

constitute the resignation of a Commissioner and authorize the Board to appoint a new 

member to fill the unexpired term so vacated: 

 

 Absence from three (3) consecutive meetings; 

 Becoming a candidate for any elected public office; or, 

 Accepting any appointive office or employment in County service. 

 

The Commission shall elect one (1) of its members as the Chairperson on an annual basis, 

changing who serves as Chairperson each year. The Chairperson shall also be willing to 

serve on other local boards within the County that are required, by statute, to be represented 

by the “head of the merit system” and which are appointed by the Board of Supervisors. 

Three (3) members shall be present to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. A 

majority of the commission membership shall constitute a majority vote. 

 

The Commission shall become familiar with and perform duties as are necessary to carry out 

the provisions of the Gila County Merit Rules, Human Resources policies, the Arizona 

Revised Statute (A.R.S.) Title 38, et seq., for Public Safety Officers (A.R.S. 38-1101 through 

38-1114), and Adult and Juvenile Probation Officers (A.R.S. 38-1131 through 38-1141), the 

Gila County Sheriff’s Office Policy and Procedure Manual and the Superior Court’s Merit 

Rules and Policies, and other adopted policies of the County. In addition, the Commission 

may assist the Board of Supervisors in the following areas: 

  



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

 

PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-625 

 

Replaces:  Rule # 3 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

3 of 3 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-625  
 

A. Making recommendations on Human Resources policies with the goal of improving 

understanding, consistent application, and the efficient operation of County government;  

 

B. Making recommendations to the Board and Human Resources Director (Director) of 

problems concerning personnel administration; 

 

C. Making recommendations to assist in the fostering of interest in the best practices of 

institutions of learning and of civic, professional, and employee organizations in order to 

improve personnel standards in the County service; and, 

 

D. Making annual reports, and such special reports as the Commission considers desirable to 

the Board regarding personnel administration in the County service and recommendations for 

improvements. 

 

The Commission shall hold meetings in accordance with the Arizona Open Meeting laws 

A.R.S. §38-431, et seq.  The Commission shall meet at such times and places as shall be 

specified by call of a majority of the Commission or by the Chairperson. 

 

Further: 

 All meetings shall be open to the public;  

 At least five (5) days’ written notice of each meeting shall be given by the 

Director to each member not joining in the call for a meeting; and, 

 Three (3) members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.  

 

All matters to be presented for consideration by the Commission at a regular or special 

meeting shall be placed on the Commission’s agenda without undue delay. The agenda shall 

be electronically mailed to each member of the Commission and shall be posted in 

accordance with A.R.S. §38-431.02, no less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting.  

 

The Director shall provide for the recording of the official actions of the Commission in its 

minutes. The time and place of each meeting of the Commission, the commissioners present, 

all official acts of the Commission and, when requested, a commissioner’s dissent and the 

reasons for the dissent shall be recorded in the minutes. The Director shall cause the minutes 

to be transcribed and presented for approval or amendment at the next meeting. The minutes, 

or a true copy thereof, shall be open to public inspection.  

 



   
ARF-3659     Consent Agenda Item      3. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  
Submitted By: Marian

Sheppard,
Clerk of the
Board

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Boards, Commissions and Committees Appointments and
Reappointments.

Background Information
There are many boards, commissions and committees (BCCs) that have
been established within the County that are under the purview of the Gila
County Board of Supervisors.  Some of the BCCs are regulated by state
statutes and or their own bylaws.  The Board of Supervisors and the
public need to be apprised of the changes as they occur.

Evaluation
Membership changes will be presented to the Board of Supervisors (BOS)
for the following BCCs:

Gila County Personnel Commission - Jonathan Barber has been serving
on this Commission for over 9 years, and he was recently elected by the
Personnel Commission to be its Chairman.  No action is required by the
BOS.  This information is being presented as it relates to other BCCs (as
noted below).

Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) Local Board:  Per
statutory requirement, a member of this governing board must be the
head of the Personnel Commission.  Jonathan Barber has agreed to serve
on this Board.  He is represented as a "Citizen" on the Board, and he is
the Chairman of the Personnel Commission.  This term of office will begin
upon appointment by the BOS and it will end on 12/31/19. 

Correctional Officers Retirement Plan (CORP) Local Board for Gila County
Sheriff's Office Dispatchers:  Per statutory requirement, a member of this
governing board must be the head of Personnel Commission.  Jonathan



governing board must be the head of Personnel Commission.  Jonathan
Barber has agreed to serve on this Board.  He is represented as a
"Citizen" on the Board, and he is the Chairman of the Personnel
Commission.  His term of office will begin upon appointment by the BOS
and it will end on 12/31/17.  Gary Andress is currently serving on this
Board and he is represented as a "Citizen."  His previous previous term of
office ended on 12/31/15; and, he has agreed to serve on this Board for a
4-year term beginning 1/1/16 through 12/31/19.  His appointment will
be made retroactive to 1/1/16, if approved by the BOS.

CORP for Detention Officers and Non-Uniformed Officers:  Per statutory
requirement, a member of this governing board must be the head of
Personnel Commission.  Jonathan Barber has agreed to serve on this
Board.  He is represented as a "Citizen"on the Board, and as he is the
Chairman of the Personnel Commission.  His term of office will begin
upon appointment by the BOS and it will end on 2/31/17.   Gary
Andress is currently serving on this Board and he is represented as a
"Citizen."  His previous previous term of office ended on 12/31/15; and,
he has agreed to serve on this Board for a 4-year term beginning 1/1/16
through 12/31/19.  His appointment will be made retroactive to 1/1/16,
if approved by the BOS.  On 6/4/14, Erich Kenney was elected by the
participating members of the local plan by secret ballot, and the election
results were declared official by said Board on 10/6/15, which began his
term of office through 12/31/17.  The BOS needs to acknowledge this
elected member.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors needs to approve or acknowledge the
appointments as stated in the Evaluation section of this report.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors approve or acknowledge
the appointments to the various BCCs as stated in this report.

Suggested Motion
Approval for the Board of Supervisors to appoint, reappoint or
acknowledge members of the following boards, commissions or
committees:  1) Appoint Jonathan Barber, as a citizen and head of the
merit system (Personnel Commission) for Gila County, as follows:  Public
Safety Personnel Retirement System Local Board for a term ending
12/31/19; Correctional Officers Retirement Plan (CORP) Local Board for
Sheriff's Office (S.O.) Dispatchers for a term ending 12/31/17; and, CORP
Local Board for S.O. Detention Officers and Non-Uniformed Officers for a
term ending 12/31/17; 2) Reappoint Gary Andress as a citizen to the



CORP Local Board for S.O. Dispatchers and the CORP Local Board for
S.O. Detention Officers and Non-Uniformed Officers retroactive to 1/1/16
through 12/31/19; and, 3) Acknowledge Erich Kenney as an elected
member of the CORP Local Board for S.O. Detention Officers and
Non-Uniformed Officers for a term beginning 10/6/15 through 12/31/17.

Attachments
GC Personnel Commission
PSPRS Local Board
CORP Local Board for Dispatchers
CORP Local Board for Det. Officers & Non-Uniformed Officers
CORP-Det. Officers 10-6-15 Minutes



 

 

GILA COUNTY PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

(An updated list was presented to the BOS on 3/15/16) 

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Jonathan Barber (Chairman)* B-Republican C (02/18/14)  7 years, 3 months 01/01/14-12/31/16 
 

01/01/14-12/31/16 

Jaime Escobedo (prior work 
experience in law 
enforcement) 
 

B-Democrat A (02/02/16) - 02/02/16-12/31/19 01/01/16-12/31/19 

Tom Moody B-Independent C (02/18/14) 4 years, 9 months 01/01/14-12/31/16 
 

01/01/14-12/31/16 

David Lagunas  B-Democrat C (12/02/14) 
 

1 year, 1 month 01/01/15-12/31/18 01/01/15-12/31/18 

Lori Andrade B-Independent C (02/02/16) 1 year, 3 months 02/02/16-12/31/19 01/01/16-12/31/19 

*On March 1, 2016, the Personnel Commission elected Jonathan Barber as its Chairman. 
1
  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation:  On October 22, 1979, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 78-10-8 establishing a Personnel Policy which included establishing a Personnel Commission at 
that same time.   

B. The Personnel Commission was also established in accordance with A.R.S. §11-353 (A) which states, “The commission shall consist of five members, each of whom shall hold office for a 
term of four years and until his successor is appointed and qualified.  Of the members first appointed, two shall serve for a two-year term two for a three-year term and one shall serve a 
four-year term, and such members shall determine by lot the length of their terms.   

C. A.R.S. §11-353 (B) states “Members of the commission shall be selected from among the qualified electors of the county.  No more than three of such members shall be from the same 
political party. 

D. Gila County Policy No. BOS-HRS-625 - Personnel Commission states “At least one member shall have prior work experience in the law enforcement or probation field.”  
 

2
  Appointment Designation: 

A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 

C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 
3
  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 



 

PUBLIC SAFETY PERSONNEL RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PSPRS) LOCAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

(Proposed to the BOS on 3/15/16) 

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

John Marcanti (appointed by 
BOS) 

B A (12/01/15) - 01/01/16-12/31/16 
BOS appoints on a 
yearly basis. 

01/01/13-12/31/16 
Coincides with 
Supervisor’s term. 

Jonathan Barber-CITIZEN 
(Personnel Commission 
Chairman & appointed by 
BOS) 

B A (03/15/16) - 03/15/16-12/31/19 01/01/16-12/31/19 

Kevin Corso-CITIZEN 
(appointed by BOS) 

B A (08/19/13) - 08/19/13-08/18/17 
**12/31/16 

01/01/13-12/31/16 

Michael Johnson-MEMBER 
(elected by Plan members) 

C A (02/21/12) - 01/01/12-12/31/15 01/01/12-12/31/15 
EXPIRED TERM 

Johnny Holmes-MEMBER 
(elected by Plan members ) 

C B (04/01/14) - 09/25/13-12/31/16*** 01/01/13-12/31/16 

1
  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation:  March 1, 1985 
B. Established per A.R.S. 38-841 through 38-859 
C. PSPRS Local Board is comprised of 5 members:  1 member appointed by BOS and represented as the BOS Chairman; 2 citizens appointed by the BOS of which 1 citizen who shall be the 

Chairman of the Gila County Personnel Commission; and 2 members elected by secret ballot by members of the PSPRS and who are employed by Gila County and who are 
“acknowledged:” by the BOS.  Board members are appointed for a term of 4 years. 

D. Dates of Terms of Office – BOS appoints BOS member and 2 CITIZENS; and Local Board elects by secret ballot 2 MEMBERS, so their start term date begins when the Local Board certifies 
the election results. 
 

2
  Appointment Designation: 

A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 

C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 
3
  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 



 

CORRECTIONAL OFFICERS RETIREMENT PLAN LOCAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS- 

FOR GILA COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE DISPATCHERS 

 (Proposed to the BOS on 3/15/16) 

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Mike Pastor (appointed by 
BOS as Chairman) 

B A (12/01/15) - 01/01/16-12/31/16 
BOS appoints on a 
yearly basis. 

01/01/12-12/31/15 
01/01/13-12/31/16 –  
Revised 1 time to 
coincide with elected 
official’s term of office 

*Jonathan Barber-CITIZEN 
(Personnel Commission 
Chairman and appointed by 
BOS) 

B B (03/15/16) 
(Ken Volz) 

- 03/15/16-12/31/17 01/01/14-12/31/17 

Gary Andress – CITIZEN 
(appointed by BOS) 

B C (03/15/16) 2 months 01/01/16-12/31/19 01/01/16-12/31/19 

VACANCY 
(elected by Plan members)  

C (Lyndi Lopez) 
 

 ?-12/31/17 
 

01/01/14-12/31/17 
This will be the 
corrected term. 

VACANCY   
(elected by Plan members) 

C   ?-12/31/19 01/01/16-12/31/19 

*Ken Volz was the previous member; however, when his term of office on the Gila County Personnel Commission ended on 12/31/15, he was not reappointed to 

the Commission.  There is now a vacancy on the CORP Local Board for Dispatchers for the term ending 12/31/17, which must be filled by the head of the Gila 

County Personnel Commission.  On March 1, 2016, the Personnel Commission elected Jonathan Barber as its Chairman, and he has agreed to serve on this 

board. 
1
  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation: August 16, 2004  
B. The powers and duties of the Local Board are outlined in A.R.S. §38-893. 
C. The Local Board is comprised of 5 members of which one member represents the Board of Supervisors (BOS) Chairman and is appointed by the BOS; 2 members represent “Citizens” and 

are appointed by the BOS; and 2 members are elected by secret ballot by those members of the CORP and who are employees of Gila County.  The BOS “acknowledges” those 2 board 
member appointments. 

D. Per statute, terms of office are for 4 years, with terms staggered  2 years apart so that 1 Member’s and 1 Citizen’s term of office will end on the same date; and the other Member’s and 
Citizen’s term of office will end on the same date 2 years apart from the other Member and Citizen.  Note:  Some one-time adjustments will be made to the terms of incumbent and terms 
of office in order to align this board with statutory requirements.    
 

2
  Appointment Designation: 

A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 



         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 
C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 
3
  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 

 

 



 

CORRECTIONAL OFFICERS RETIREMENT PLAN LOCAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS- 

FOR GILA COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE DETENTION OFFICERS AND NON-UNIFORMED OFFICERS 

(Proposed to the BOS on 3/15/16) 

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Mike Pastor (appointed by 
BOS) 

B C (12/01/15) - 01/01/16-12/31/16 
BOS appoints on a 
yearly basis. 

01/01/13-12/31/16 
Coincides with 
Supervisor’s term. 

*Jonathan Barber-CITIZEN 
(Personnel Commission 
Chairman and appointed by 
BOS) 

B B (03/15/16) 
(Ken Volz) 

- 03/15/16- 12/31/17 01/01/14-12/31/17 

**Gary Andress-CITIZEN 
(appointed by BOS)  

B C (03/15/16) 2 months 01/01/16-12/31/19 
 

01/01/16-12/31/19 

VACANCY-MEMBER (elected 
by Plan members 

C   ? – 12/3/19 
 

01/01/16-12/31/19  

***Erich Kenney-MEMBER 
(elected by Plan members) 

C A (03/15/16-BOS 
“acknowledged” elected 
member) 

- 10/06/15-12/31/17 01/01/14-12/31/17 

*Ken Volz was the previous member; however, when his term of office on the Gila County Personnel Commission ended on 12/31/15, he was not reappointed to 

the Commission.  There is now a vacancy on the PSPRS Local Board for the term ending 12/31/17, which must be filled by the head of the Gila County Personnel 

Commission.  On March 1, 2016, the Personnel Commission elected Jonathan Barber as its Chairman, and he has agreed to serve on this board. 

**The reappointment of Gary Andress will be retroactive to January 1, 2016, the beginning of his second term.   

***Erich Kenney was elected by the CORP Local Board on 6/4/14 and the election results were declared official by said Board on 10/6/15, which began Erich’s 

term of office.  There was a one-time adjustment made to this 4-year term of office in order to have staggered terms for elected members on this Board.  Erich’s 

term will run from 10/06/15 to 12/31/17.  

 
1
  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation: August 16, 2004  
B. The powers and duties of the Local Board are outlined in A.R.S. §38-893. 
C. The Local Board is comprised of 5 members of which one member represents the Board of Supervisors (BOS) Chairman and is appointed by the BOS; 2 members represent “Citizens” and 

are appointed by the BOS; and 2 members are elected by secret ballot by those members of the CORP and who are employees of Gila County.  The BOS “acknowledges” those 2 board 
member appointments. 

D. Per statute, terms of office are for 4 years, with terms staggered  2 years apart so that 1 Member’s and 1 Citizen’s term of office will end on the same date; and the other Member’s and 
Citizen’s term of office will end on the same date 2 years apart from the other Member and Citizen.  Note:  Some one-time adjustments will be made to the terms of incumbent and terms 
of office in order to align this board with statutory requirements.    



 
2
  Appointment Designation: 

A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 

C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 
3
  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 

 

 







   
ARF-3631     Consent Agenda Item      3. K.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  
Reporting
Period:

January 2016

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for January 2016.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the January 2016 monthly activity report submitted
by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerk of Court January 2016



















   
ARF-3640     Consent Agenda Item      3. L.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  
Reporting
Period:

February 2016

Submitted For: Jesse Bolinger, Justice of the Peace-Globe Region 
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr.

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office monthly report for February
2016.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the February 2016 monthly activity report submitted
by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Monthly Report for February 2016









   
ARF-3635     Consent Agenda Item      3. M.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  
Reporting
Period:

January 2016

Submitted For: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region 
Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's January 2016 monthly activity
report.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the January 2016 monthly activity report submitted
by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Jan 2016 Report













   
ARF-3644     Consent Agenda Item      3. N.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  
Reporting
Period:

January 2016

Submitted For: Colt White, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Michelle Keegan, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for January 2016

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the January 2016 monthly activity report submitted
by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
Payson Regional Constable's Office monthly report for January 2016

























































   
ARF-3658     Consent Agenda Item      3. O.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  
Reporting
Period:

February 2016

Submitted For: Ruben Mancha, Globe Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for February 2016.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the February 2016 monthly activity report submitted
by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
February 2016





















































   
ARF-3661     Consent Agenda Item      3. P.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  
Reporting
Period:

February 23, 2016, March 1, 2016 and March 4, 2016

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk

Information
Subject
February 23, 2016, March 1, 2016, and March 4, 2016, Board of
Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the February 23, 2016, March 1, 2016, and March 4, 2016,
Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Attachments
03-04-16 BOS Meeting Minutes
03-01-16 BOS Meeting Minutes
02-23-16 BOS Meeting Minutes



Page 1 of 2 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  March 4, 2016 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via telephone); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County 
Manager; Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; and 
Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.  
 
ABSENT:  Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board  
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a special session at 11:30 a.m. 
this date in the County Administration Conference Room. 
 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 16-03-02 
ordering the cancellation of the May 17, 2016, Special Election for the 
Solitude Trails Domestic Water Improvement District (STDWID) and 
appointing new governing board members to the STDWID, as follows: 
Robert Bever, Roger Miotto and Stephen Wetherell.   
 
Eric Mariscal, Elections Director, stated that on January 5, 2016, the Board of 
Supervisors adopted an Order calling for a Special Election to be held on May 
17, 2016, to elect new governing board members for the Solitude Trails 
Domestic Water Improvement District (STDWID).  He stated that there were 3 
vacancies to be filled and 3 individuals who turned in nomination forms.  In 
compliance with Arizona Revised Statute §16-410 Cancellation of certain 
elections; appointment to office; filling vacancies, the 75-day time frame prior 
to cancelling an election has expired and there have been no write-in 
candidates; therefore, the Board of Supervisors may cancel the May 17, 2016, 
Special Election and appoint the 3 new governing board members that have 
submitted nomination forms as if they were elected.   



Page 2 of 2 
 

Don McDaniel, County Manager, clarified for Vice-Chairman Martin that the 
STDWID governing board is a 3 member board and not a 5 member board.  
Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief, added that the 
previous resolution adopted by the Board of Supervisors (Resolution No. 15-12-
03) revoked the authority of the STDWID so, at that time, the Board of 
Supervisors became the STDWID Board of Directors.  If the Board of 
Supervisors adopts Resolution No. 16-03-02, Mr. Dalton stated that the May 
17, 2016, Special Election would be cancelled and the new STDWID governing 
board members would be appointed, as stated in the agenda item.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously adopted Resolution No. 16-03-02.  (A copy of the Resolution is 
attached to the minutes and it is permanently on file in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Office.)  
 
Item 3 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Call to the Public is held for public benefit 
to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any issue 
within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members may 
not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date. 
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
Item 3 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented.   
 
There were no comments presented at this time.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:40 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



Page 1 of 11 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  March 1, 2016 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; 
Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; Marian 
E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and, Laurie J. Kline Deputy Clerk 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Jeff Hessenius led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Reverend Allen Tyson of Calvary Shadows Assembly of 
God in Globe delivered the invocation. 
 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to receive an update on recent 
activities of the Old Dominion Historic Mine Park Committee and to 
consider providing an economic development grant to the City of Globe in 
order to construct a mining-themed playground at the Old Dominion 
Historic Mine Park.   
 
Thea Wilshire, Old Dominion Mine Park Committee Chairman, provided 
background information regarding the various projects that have been 
completed at the Old Dominion Historic Mine Park (ODHMP) to date.  She 
showed a slide presentation and stated that the ODHMP has received a large 
portion of funds from community partners; however, approximately $110,000 
is still needed to develop a mining-themed playground at the ODHMP.  The 
requested economic development grant would allow for the design, engineering, 
fabrication, delivery, and installation of the following features: 1) a mule 
climber; 2) a head frame climber; 3) two ore car benches; and, 4) two accessible 
play features - an arch swing and a merry-go-all.  The Board, County Manager 
Don McDaniel, and Finance Division Director Jeff Hessenius held a brief 
discussion.  The Board agreed that it would be more feasible to consider 



Page 2 of 11 
 

providing an economic development grant to the ODHMP after the Gila County 
Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Budget has been adopted.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
suggested that Ms. Wilshire approach the Industrial Development Authority 
with a funding request for this project.  Chairman Pastor requested that Ms. 
Wilshire return to the Board in August or September (2016) with a request for 
an economic development grant for the ODHMP.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously 
tabled this agenda item until after the Gila County Fiscal Year 2016-2017 
Budget has been adopted by the Board of Supervisors.   
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to review all proposals received for 
Request for Proposals No. 092815 Rebid - Document Scan Conversion for 
the Gila County Recorder's Office; award to the most responsive, 
responsible and qualified bidder; and, authorize the Chairman's signature 
on the award contract for the winning bid.   
 
Mr. Hessenius stated that the bids received for Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 
092815 were returned with significant disparity in responses; consequently, 
the Board was advised to reject the bids; which it did.  As instructed by the 
Board, a revised RFP was issued which contained a restructured scope of work, 
and which elicited comparable proposals.  An evaluation team was formed to 
review and evaluate the proposals.  It is the recommendation of said team that 
the Board award the contract to US Imaging, Inc.     
 
Kaycee Stratton, Chief Deputy Recorder, emphasized that this endeavor was for 
the public’s benefit; therefore, a lot of care was used to ensure the Recorder’s 
Office’s ability to provide the best possible service to the public.  Supervisor 
Marcanti complimented the Recorder’s Office and Finance Division for their 
hard work on this project.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously awarded a contract to US 
Imaging, Inc. for RFP No. 092815 Rebid to US Imaging, Inc., and authorized 
the Chairman’s signature on the contract. 
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Quote and Purchase 
Addendum (Quote No. QUO-05275-W9Q9W3) with Spillman Technologies, 
Inc. in the amount of $149,592 for the purchase of a Mobile Module 
Licensing Package in order to update the Spillman software at the 
Sheriff's Office.   
 
Sarah White, Sheriff’s Office Chief Administrative Officer, provided information 
regarding the Spillman software upgrade which includes the following features 
(and site license) for each of the items listed below:    
 
Mobile AVL (automatic vehicle locator) mapping 
Mobile field report with field interview 
Mobile records 
Mobile state and national queries  



Page 3 of 11 
 

Mobile voiceless CAD (computer-aided design) 
Driver’s license scanning interface 
 
Ms. White also explained the importance and benefits of each of the features 
and stated that each of the mobile modules provide increased security and 
safety to the public and to the Sheriff’s deputies, as well as quicker response 
time to incidents in the field thereby reducing the amount of time spent in the 
office.  Each of the Board members spoke in favor of upgrading the Spillman 
Software as described above. 
 
Jefferson Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief, expressed 
concern regarding awarding a contract to the sole source vendor with no 
competitive bids, which is in accordance with County policy.  Mr. Dalton stated 
that Sheriff Shepherd, by way of his presence at this meeting, supports the 
justification letter submitted by Ms. White for the purchase with Spillman.  (A 
copy of the letter is attached to the agenda item.)  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously 
approved the Quote and Purchase Addendum (Quote No. QUO-05275-
W9Q9W3) with Spillman Technologies, Inc.   
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Memorandum of 
Agreement between Gila County and the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency, which will allow Gila County Emergency Services to initiate 
emergency public alert messages using the IPAWS-OPEN platform.  
 
Michael O'Driscoll, Health & Emergency Services Division Director, stated that 
this Memorandum of Agreement is required by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) and, if approved, it will allow Gila County to 
utilize the Integrated Public Alert and Warning System (IPAWS) platform and 
have the ability to contact FEMA in the event of an emergency in order to send 
mass notifications to residents by way of nearby cell towers.  Chairman Pastor 
inquired as to how this relates to the Everbridge Mass Notification System, to 
which Mr. O’Driscoll replied that this is redundancy in that Everbridge has the 
capability to send messages to a specific area in the County whereas the 
IPAWS-OPEN platform has the capability to send notifications to the entire 
County within cell phone tower range.  It also includes notifications to the 
media (radio and television) for broadcast and video playback.  Supervisor 
Marcanti inquired as to who makes the determination as to the level of 
emergency and the notifications to be sent.  Mr. O’Driscoll replied that the level 
of emergency is determined by the Gila County Emergency Management 
Department.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved the Memorandum of 
Agreement between Gila County and the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency. 
 
E.  Information/Discussion/Action to review the bid submitted 
for Request for Proposals No. 110615-1 - Supplemental Nutrition 



Page 4 of 11 
 

Assistance Program Education Support Services; award to the sole bidder 
in the amount of $85,000; and, authorize the Chairman's signature on the 
award contract for the winning bid.   
 
Mr. Hessenius stated that previously the Board authorized the submission of a 
grant application to the Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount 
of $201,572 for the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance and Education Program 
grant.  The actual amount awarded to Gila County was $201,638, and the 
funds need to be used from October 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016 (federal fiscal 
year 2016).  He stated that the Request for Proposals (RFP) was advertised in 
the official newspaper of the County per County policy, and one response was 
received.  The recommendation by staff is that the Board award a contract for 
RFP No. 110615-1 to Pinnacle Prevention in the amount of $85,000.  
 
Chairman Pastor asked for further clarification regarding the implementation of 
the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance and Education Program grant.  Mr. 
O’Driscoll replied that there is a competitive grant application process, and Gila 
County, as the grant recipient, is required to contract with one Arizona-based 
organization employing a Registered Dietitian Nutritionist to collaborate with 
Gila County to support the implementation of farmer’s markets strategies, 
promote participation in local physical activity resources, and support the 
implementation of wellness policies in schools and early childhood programs.  
He stated that he plans to utilize one full-time employee in northern Gila 
County and one full-time employee in southern Gila County to implement the 
programs.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Marcanti, the Board unanimously awarded a contract to Pinnacle Prevention 
for RFP No. 110615-1, and authorized the Chairman’s signature on the 
contract. 
 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Agreement No. 020516-
Economic Development Grant between the Payson Senior Center through 
the Payson Senior Express program, whereby the County will disburse 
$20,000 to the Payson Senior Center to assist in providing transportation 
services to senior citizens and disabled citizens in the Payson community 
and surrounding areas; and further the Board determines this is for the 
benefit of the public and will improve or enhance the economic welfare of 
the inhabitants of Gila County.   
 
Mr. Hessenius stated that in January 2016, Supervisor Martin received a letter 
from Joanne Conlin, Director of the Payson Senior Center, requesting a 
contribution from the County in the amount of $20,000 to support the Payson 
Senior Express transportation program for senior and disabled residents in the 
Payson community and surrounding areas.  Approximately 50% of the $90,000 
program budget is funded through government agencies.  The Payson Senior 
Express program is the only donation based transportation program in the 
Payson area.  Staff recommends approval of an economic development grant in 
the amount of $20,000 to the Payson Senior Center for the Payson Senior 



Page 5 of 11 
 

Express program.  The Board members commented supportively.  Upon motion 
by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously approved Agreement No. 020516.  
 
G.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Agreement No. 020516-1-
Economic Development Grant between Gila County and the Payson Senior 
Center, whereby the County will disburse $30,000 to the Payson Senior 
Center to assist in providing and delivering meals to senior citizens in the 
community and surrounding outlying areas through the Meals on Wheels 
program; and further the Board determines this is for the benefit of the 
public and will improve or enhance the economic welfare of the 
inhabitants of Gila County.   
 
Mr. Hessenius stated that this agenda item is similar to the previous agenda 
item.  In January 2016, Supervisor Martin received another letter from Ms. 
Conlin requesting a contribution from the County in the amount of $30,000 to 
support the Meals on Wheels program.  The Payson Senior Center is the only 
provider of Meals on Wheels for senior and disabled residents in the 
community, and meals are delivered to all points surrounding Payson, such as 
Tonto Basin, Oxbow, Rye, Deer Creek, and Gisela.  The current budget for the 
Meals on Wheels program is $260,000 and approximately 42% is funded by 
government agencies.  Staff recommends approval of an economic development 
grant in the amount of $30,000 to the Payson Senior Center for the Meals on 
Wheels program.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 
Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously approved Agreement  
No. 020516-1.   
 
H.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the conceptual 
architectural design for the Superior Court North, as submitted on this 
date; authorize staff to secure the services of any and all engineering 
disciplines and other ancillary services, that fall under $50,000, which 
may be required in order to prepare the project for formal bidding; and 
direct staff to return to the Board prior to commencement of the formal 
bidding process for the Payson Superior Court North project.   
 
Michael Scannell, Deputy County Manager, acknowledged the support and 
feedback he has received from Superior Court and the Clerk of the Superior 
Court staff with regard to Phase 1 (Superior Court North) of the Payson 
Criminal Justice Space Allocation Project (Project).  He reviewed Phase I 
objectives, as follows:  1) To present the conceptual design for the Superior 
Court North facility in Payson; 2) to seek the Board’s approval for the 
conceptual architectural design as submitted; and, 3) to authorize staff to 
engage professionals in the fields of civil, mechanical, electrical, and structural 
engineering for the purpose of designing the respective elements of the Project 
in order to bring Phase 1 to the point of being ready for the formal bidding 
process.  He clarified that Phase 1 of the Project is Superior Court North; Phase 
2 is the Payson Jail Project; and, Phases 3 and 4 include the Justice Court, 



Page 6 of 11 
 

County Attorney’s Office and the Probation Department.  Mr. Scannell then 
introduced Caryn Paige, Registered Architect of Canyon Country Design, Inc., 
to discuss the architectural drawings she designed for Phase 1 of the Project.  
She provided the following highlights:  The new design allows for better security 
operations at the entrance of the Courthouse; the Clerk of the Court’s Office 
has a screened lobby area to provide more privacy for citizens; there is a larger 
assembly and deliberation room for juries; and, safer transport of prisoners 
into the court rooms.  She believes these improvements will provide better 
efficiency for County employees and for the citizens.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti asked for some clarification regarding Phase 1 and Phase 
2 as it relates to transporting the prisoners to the courtroom, and how the sally 
port will be incorporated.  Ms. Paige explained that the sally port will transport 
the prisoners directly into the jail into a holding cell to await court proceedings, 
thus creating a safer environment for the employees, the prisoners and the 
public.  Vice-Chairman Martin commented favorably regarding moving forward 
with the aforementioned plans which she believes will improve the safety and 
security of individuals at the Payson Courthouse and jail facilities.  Chairman 
Pastor confirmed with Ms. Paige that the estimated cost of Phase 1 and Phase 2 
of the Project is $1.4M.  He then inquired as to the timeline for completion of 
the two phases.  Ms. Paige replied that it would take approximately 8 months 
for substantial completion of Phase 1 and Phase 2, and if all goes well, 
construction could commence on July 1, 2016.   
 
Chairman Pastor invited Timothy Wright, Gila County Superior Court Presiding 
Judge, Division II, (via ITV) in Payson, and Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Court 
and Jury Commissioner, to speak to this issue.  Judge Wright and Ms. 
Escobedo spoke highly of the communication with Ms. Paige and County staff 
with regard to the planning of this Project, and both mentioned that the 
proposed improvements to the Courthouse facility will provide a safer 
environment for Court staff, other County employees and the public.  Mr. 
Scannell added that the security in place at the Globe Courthouse, at a cost of 
approximately $80,000, will most likely need to be mirrored at the Payson 
Courthouse in the future.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved the conceptual 
architectural design for the Superior Court North, as submitted on this date; 
authorized staff to secure the services of any and all engineering disciplines 
and other ancillary services that fall under $50,000, which may be required in 
order to prepare the project for formal bidding; and, directed staff to return to 
the Board prior to commencement of the formal bidding process for the Payson 
Superior Court North project. 
 
I.  Information/Discussion/Action to accept the resignation/retirement of 
Colt White and appoint Ronnie "Tony" McDaniel as his replacement as the 
Payson Regional Constable effective immediately.   
 



Page 7 of 11 
 

Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated, “This action is bitter sweet because of 
the retirement of an excellent County Constable in Colt White, who has great 
integrity, honesty, and an immeasurable good work ethic.”  He advised that 
this is the time to accept the resignation of Colt White and, if it pleases the 
Board, to appoint Tony McDaniel as his replacement.   
 
Colt White, Payson Regional Constable, thanked the Board, the many 
employees he has worked with at the County, and the Constable Clerk.  He 
thanked Mr. McDaniel for his kind words and commented that he and staff 
from all areas of the County have worked as a team, which has been very 
helpful to him while serving as the Constable.  He recommended Tony 
McDaniel as his replacement as he believes that Tony will carry out the duties 
of the Constable with the same integrity and balance necessary to fulfill the 
needs and serve the community in the best way possible.  Each of the Board 
members thanked Mr. Colt for his service and gave him kudos for his hard 
work and dedication to the County, and wished him well in his retirement. 
 
Ronnie “Tony” McDaniel stated that he retired as a law enforcement officer 
from the Arizona Department of Public Safety after 24 years of service.  Part of 
his service was in highway patrol and the other part was in criminal 
investigation.  He also served on the Gila County Narcotics Task Force in 
northern Gila County.  He thanked Mr. White for the recommendation, and 
congratulated him on all his years of law enforcement and his retirement.  He 
also thanked the Board for the time to speak and stated that he feels this is an 
opportunity for him, so he is looking forward to the job.  Chairman Pastor 
thanked Tony for being present at the meeting in Globe today.  Upon motion by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously accepted the resignation/retirement of Colt White and appointed 
Ronnie "Tony" McDaniel as his replacement as the Payson Regional Constable 
effective immediately. 
 
Item 3 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Acknowledgment of the January 2016 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.   
 
B.  Acknowledgment of the January 2016 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.  
 
C.  Approval of the February 16, 2016, Board of Supervisors' meeting 
minutes.  
 



Page 8 of 11 
 

D.  Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of 
February 2, 2016, February 9, 2016, February 16, 2016, and February 23, 
2016.  
 
FEBRUARY 2, 2016 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Lonny Cline – Public Works – Public Works Roads Supervisor – 03/10/16 – 
Public Works Fund – DOH 06/11/97 
2.  Ernest Salcido – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 12/07/15 – 
General Fund – DOH 08/25/15 
3.  Frank Gonzales – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 01/11/16 – 
General Fund – DOH 10/05/15 
NEW HIRES: 
4.  Justin Goad – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 02/08/16 – General 
Fund – Replacing Austin Stratton  
5.  Walter Wiley – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 02/08/16 – General 
Fund – Replacing Arthur Decker 
6.  Patricia Loos – Clerk of Superior Court – Court Clerk – 02/08/16 – General 
Fund – Replacing Nancy Hinojos 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
7.  Jann Durst – Payson Regional Justice Court – Temporary Justice Court 
Clerk Associate – 02/08/16 – General Fund  
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
8.  Anna Rippy – Payson Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk Associate 
– 01/27/16 – General Fund 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
9.  Karen Brake – Sheriff’s Office – Administrative Clerk – 09/08/15 – General 
Fund – Salary adjustment 
10.  Lieneke Mellema – Sheriff’s Office – Temporary Accounting Clerk – 
12/14/15 – General Fund - Salary adjustment 
REQUEST TO POST: 
11.  Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – Vacated by Ernest Salcido 
and Frank Gonzales 
12.  Public Works – Public Works Roads Supervisor – Vacated by Lonny Cline  
 
FEBRUARY 9, 2016 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Savannah Jewell – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 02/03/16 – General 
Fund – DOH 12/14/15 
2.  Mathilde Seibert – Health and Emergency Services – Administrative Clerk – 
04/01/16 – Health Service Fund – DOH 06/28/05 
3.  Susan Williams – School Superintendent’s Office – Administrative Assistant 
– 02/05/16 – General Fund – DOH 08/13/01 
NEW HIRES: 



Page 9 of 11 
 

4.  Hannah Moore – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Control Officer – 
02/16/16 – Rabies Control Fund – Replacing Jessica Palmer 
5.  Craig Humphrey – Health and Emergency Services – Communicable Disease 
Specialist – 02/29/16 – Bio Terrorism Program Fund – Replacing Sandra Pena 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
6.  Susan Williams – Globe Regional Justice Court – Temporary Justice Court 
Clerk Associate – 02/16/16 – General Fund 
REQUEST TO POST: 
7.  School Superintendent’s Office – Administrative Assistant – Vacated by 
Susan Williams  
8.  Health and Emergency Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – Vacated by 
Mathilde Seibert  
 
FEBRUARY 16, 2016 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Wayne Dorsett – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 03/31/16 - Sheriff 
BLESF Program Fund – DOH 10/29/07 
2.  Noreen Prater – Sheriff’s Office – Medical Assistant – 03/01/16 – General 
Fund – DOH 11/20/95 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
3.  Robert Swinford – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy County Attorney Senior 
– 02/17/16 – General Fund 
4.  Jefferson Dalton – County Attorney’s Office – Civil Bureau Chief – 02/29/16 
– General Fund  
5.  Travis Shields – Child Support – Deputy County Attorney – 02/29/16 – 
General Fund  
6.  Karen Yanez – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary Senior – 02/29/16 
– General (.10)/AG Victim Rights(.90) Funds 
7.  Debra Blevins – Health and Emergency Services – Accounting Analyst – 
02/24/16 – Various Funds 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
8.  Ashlie Enfield-Goss – Sheriff’s Office – From Property and Evidence 
Custodian Underfill – To Property and Evidence Custodian – 02/15/16 –  
General Fund – Replacing Marcus Teague 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
9.  Jonathan Manley – Superior Court – From Law Clerk/Bailiff – To Law 
Clerk/Bailiff(.50) – General Fund – Reduction in hours 
REQUEST TO POST: 
10.  Sheriff’s Office – Accounting Clerk Specialist – Vacated by Ashlie Enfield-
Goss 
11.  Payson Regional Justice Court – Bailiff – New grant funded position 
FEBRUARY 23, 2016 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Diana Jones – Finance – Accounting Analyst – 02/26/16 – General Fund – 
DOH 02/12/01 



Page 10 of 11 
 

2.  Susan Byrum – Superior Court – Court Reporter – 02/19/16 – General 
Fund – DOH 06/15/98 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
3.  Ryan Holguin – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 02/29/16 – 
General Fund – Replacing Ernest Salcido 
4.  Guadalupe Aldape – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 
02/29/16 – General Fund – Replacing Frank Gonzales 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5.  Jasmine Gingras – Health and Emergency Services – Staff Nutritionist – 
02/17/16 – WIC (.99)/Commodity Supplement Food Program (.01) Funds  
6.  Joseph Williams – Assessor’s Office – Chief Deputy Assessor – 02/29/16 – 
General Fund  
OTHER ACTIONS: 
7.  Jeff McClure – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 02/22/16 – General Fund – 
Position reassignment  
REQUEST TO POST: 
8.  Superior Court – CASA Coordinator – New position  
 
E.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of January 25, 2016, 
through January 29, 2016; February 01, 2016, through February 05, 
2016; and, February 08, 2016, through February 12, 2016.  
 
F.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of 
January 25-31, 2016 in the amount of $383,382.29; February 1-7, 2016 
in the amount $690,852.81; February 8-14, 2016 in the amount of 
$303,619.32; February 15-21, 2016 in the amount of $466,391.00.  (An 
itemized list of disbursements is attached to the minutes and permanently on 
file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 3A – 3F.  
 
At 11:57 a.m. Vice-Chairman Martin left the meeting. 
 
Item 4 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors.  Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda.  
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
There were no comments from the public. 



Page 11 of 11 
 

Item 5 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented.  
 
Each Board member (excluding Vice-Chairman Martin) and the County 
Manager presented information on current events.  
 
At 12:01 p.m. Supervisor Marcanti made a motion to go into executive session, 
which was seconded by Chairman Pastor and approved.  
 
Item 6 – EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS:  (The Board of Supervisors may 
vote to go into executive session on one or all of the items listed in this 
section.  No action will be taken by the Board while in executive session.)  
 
At 12:13 p.m. Chairman Pastor reconvened the regular session.   
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session 
pursuant to A.R.S. §  38-431.03(A)(3) and 38-431.03(A)(4) regarding 
a proposed Settlement Agreement for Connie Sauer, Michael Donovan v. 
Gila County, ST2015-000264 regarding parcel number 302-43-135.  After 
the Regular Meeting has been reconvened, move to direct the County 
Attorney's Office to proceed as directed in the executive session regarding 
this agenda item.  
 
Supervisor Marcanti made a motion to approve the proposed Settlement 
Agreement for Connie Sauer, Michael Donovan v. Gila County, ST2015-000264 
regarding parcel number 302-43-135, which was seconded by Chairman 
Pastor.  Prior to Chairman Pastor calling for the vote, Mr. Dalton asked if the 
Board’s motion was to approve the settlement of this property tax appeal for 
the amount discussed during the executive session, to which Chairman Pastor 
agreed that the amount as discussed in the Executive Session was included in 
his motion and he asked the Clerk of the Board if it was reflected as such in 
the record, to which she affirmed.  He then asked for the vote, which passed.    
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 12:14 p.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



Page 1 of 6 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  February 23, 2016 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. 
McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and 
Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.  
 
ABSENT:  Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman, and there was no County 
Attorney present. 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a work session at 10:00 a.m. this 
date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Janice Cook led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.  Presentation and discussion of the schedule and assumptions 
established for the FY2017 Gila County preliminary budget.   
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, reviewed the various handouts that were 
provided to the Board, as follows:  Schedule for Preparation of FY 2016-2017 
Budget and Associated Tax Rates; FY2017 Budget Variables, Assumptions and 
Policies; and, FY 16/17 Budget Kickoff and Gila County Quarterly Leadership 
Meeting (comprised of elected officials and department heads).  He reviewed the 
schedule (listed below) and stated that this year, in addition to elected offices 
and departments presenting their capital needs early on, Public Works and 
Finance will develop an Internal Service Fund, which contains prices for the 
cost to lease office space, use of a County vehicle and gas.   These costs will be 
distributed to elected offices and departments in order to develop their budgets.  
He advised that the Budget Review Team is comprised of the same individuals 
who sit on the County Manager’s Administrative Team.  The Team members 
are:  Don McDaniel, County Manager;  Michael Scannell, Deputy County 



Page 2 of 6 
 

Manager;  Jacque Sanders, Assistant County Manager/Librarian; Jeff 
Hessenius, Finance Director; and, Shelley McPherson, Human Resources and 
Risk Management Director.  
 
Schedule for Preparation of FY 2016-2017 Budget and Associated Tax Rates 
Week of: 
Feb. 10 - Revenue range determination and property tax collection affect. 
Feb. 23 -  Work Session with Budget Review Team and Board of Supervisors. 
March 10 -  Budget kickoff and quarterly leadership meeting.  
March 25 -  Submit departments/elected offices capital budget. 

Submit plans for Internal Service Fund expenditures (includes 
fleet, fuel and facilities.)   

April 1 -  Finalize distribution of Internal Service Fund expenditures. 
Submit departments/elected offices staffing requirements and 
operating expenditures. 

May 2 -  Departments/elected offices presentations to Budget Review Team. 
May 27 -   Departments/elected offices tentative budgets completed. 
June 21-   Adoption of Gila County Tentative Budget. 
June 24 -  Budgets complete from special taxing districts. 
June 29 -  Public forum in Payson. 
June 30 -  Public forum in Globe. 
July 26 -  Adoption of Gila County Final Budget (Special Meeting). 
Aug. 15 -  Certification of tax rates. 
 
Mr. McDaniel then reviewed the budget variables, and recommended budget 
assumptions and budget policies (listed below).  He explained that there is a 
3% increase in the net assessed valuation overall for this year; however, that is 
115% because of new construction.  The overall net assessed value went up by 
over $14 million and $16 million of that amount is for new construction.  If the 
County did not have an increase of $16 million in the net assessed value 
because of new construction, Mr. McDaniel advised there would have been a 
decrease in the net assessed value of approximately $2 million.  The exact 
areas for new construction appear to be the hospital as a new improvement, 
expensive homes in the Payson area, and other properties that have been 
improved.  Mr. McDaniel clarified that new construction only applies to 
assessments that are made through the County Assessor.  He added that any 
valuation increase which is attached to new construction is not subject to the 
notification for tax increases, so the County would not be required to issue a 
Truth in Taxation Notice this year.  The other assumption noted by Mr. 
McDaniel is that the County property tax rate will remain at $4.19, and the tax 
levy will increase by approximately 4%.  It is being assumed that employer paid 
medical insurance costs will increase by $29.19 for individual coverage and 
$58.00 for family coverage.   
 
Chairman Pastor requested an updated report as to the distribution of the half-
cent transportation excise tax with the cities and towns, to which Mr. 



Page 3 of 6 
 

Hessenius replied that he would provide a report of the full distribution of that 
tax to the Board.   
 
FY2016/2017 Budget Variables 

• Net Assessed Value (NAV) of Property  
• Property Tax Levy Limit 
• Medical Insurance Costs 
• Liability Insurance Costs 
• Employer Paid Employee Retirement Costs 
• Annual Employee Consumer Price Index (CPI) Salary Increases 
• Annual Employee Performance Salary Increases 
• Planned Capital Improvement Projects 
• County Transportation Excise Tax (1/2 cent) 
• Highway User Revenue Fund (HURF) 
• Payments In-lieu of Taxes (PILT) Reauthorization 
• Variation in Transaction Privilege Tax (TPT) Revenue 
• State Legislative Mandates, Sweeps or Paybacks 
• Number of Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Employees 
• Staffing Vacancy Factor 

 
FY2016/2017 Recommended Budget Assumptions 

• Develop and Present a Balanced Budget 
• Maintain Public Service Levels of all Elected Offices & Appointed 

Departments 
• 3% Increase in Assessed Property Valuation (NAV) 
• 3.3% Increase in NAV Related to New Construction 
• Maintain County Primary Property Tax Rate of $4.19 
• Property Tax Levy Increases by approximately 4% 
• Employer Paid Employee Medical Insurance Costs Increase $29.19 for 

Individual & $58.00 for Family Coverage 
• Employer Paid Employee Retirement Payments Average Increase 3% 
• Employees Receive 1.8% CPI Salary Increase (Full Fiscal Year) 
• Employees Receive Average 2.5% Performance Increase (Half Fiscal Year) 
• Approximately $5M in Capital Improvement Projects Proposed 
• Transportation Excise Tax to Continue at $1.5M  
• PILT to Continue at Historic Levels of $3M 
• TPT Revenue Continues at $5M 
• State of Arizona will continue approximately $500,000 of cost shifts in: 

Judicial Salaries; Indigent Defense: HURF to DPS; Juveniles Housed at 
DJC; Department of Revenue Costs 

• Maintain Staffing Levels at previously reduced FTE levels 
 
FY2016/2017 Recommended Budget Policies 

• County will maintain the existing Primary Property Tax Rate 



Page 4 of 6 
 

• County will increase property tax levy by amount caused by new 
construction  

• County will fund liability insurance cost increase 
• County will fund Employee Retirement Benefit Cost increases including 

make up costs for PSPRS and CORP 
• County will fund Employee CPI Salary increase 
• County will fund employee performance salary increase 
• County will fund $2M in Capital Improvement Projects 
• County & Employees will fund medical insurance cost increases (50/50 

split) 
• County will absorb any new cost shifts from the State 
• Elected Official and appointed Department Heads continue to manger 

staffing levels (FTE) & salaries within the FY16 authorized position list & 
funding levels.  

 
Mr. McDaniel stated that the that the last section of the hand out was the 
presentation outline and agenda for the FY16/17 Budget Kickoff and Quarterly 
Leadership Meeting to be held on March 10, 2016, with elected officials and 
appointed department heads.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti inquired if the estimated improvement costs for the NAPA 
building (now referred to as Superior Court North) including the County 
Attorney’s Office in Payson will be included in next year’s budget assumptions.  
Mr. McDaniel replied that those costs were included in last’s year’s Capital 
Improvement Plan and they are also included in this year’s Capital 
Improvement Plan.  He advised that the Capital Improvement Plan will be 
discussed in detail at the budget kickoff meeting as well as the method of 
financing to be used in order to accomplish capital improvement projects.   
 
Chairman Pastor stated that he remembered a problem last year with one of 
the special taxing district’s budget being increased too much and he hoped a 
better system was in place in the Finance Division with regard to handling 
budgets for the special taxing districts.  Mr. McDaniel stated that the special 
taxing districts submit their own budgets and the Finance Division sets the tax 
rate to meet those budgets; however, this year the plan is to make sure that the 
special taxing districts understand the process and how the tax rate is 
formulated and that it is based on the budget submitted each special taxing 
districts.  Jeff Hessenius, Finance Division Director, added that he plans for 
staff to have a more interactive approach with respect to the special taxing 
districts to ensure a clear understanding of the process.   
 
B.  Discussion of the proposed issues to be addressed during the current 
session of the Arizona State Legislature.   



Page 5 of 6 
 

Mr. McDaniel stated that this item is to provide the Board with an update 
regarding legislation and the position of the County with respect to Senate and 
House Bills.   
 
Jacque Sanders, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, provided information 
regarding a spreadsheet, which can be accessed via the computer network that 
tracks the status of CSA (County Supervisors Association of Arizona) requests 
for responses to proposed legislation and the County’s position on each of the 
House Bills (HB) or Senate Bills (SB), whether it is favorable or unfavorable.  
She then reviewed the following House and Senate Bills: 
 
SB 1257: misconduct involving weapons; public places 
Response:  unfavorable 
 
SB 1412: incompetent; non-restorable defendants; involuntary commitment 
Response:  no [State] funding 
 
HB 2602: fireworks; permitted uses; regulation 
Response:  unfavorable 
 
SB 1523: truth in taxation; levy increases 
A response has not been requested from CSA yet. 
Mr. McDaniel clarified that the unanimous vote required with SB1523 would 
happen at staff level and would require a unanimous vote by the Board of 
Supervisors for things that happen routinely and that this requirement would 
be unfavorable and not really appropriate.   
 
SB 1428: The proposition and accompanying legislation permit the State to 
adjust certain benefits in the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System to 
alleviate system underfunding, including the replacement of the current 
permanent benefit increase structure with a cost of living adjustment that is 
indexed for inflation, capped at 2% per year.  Mr. McDaniel stated that staff 
believes SB 1428 to be worthy of support.  It’s an excellent solution to a very 
difficult problem.   
 
Chairman Pastor asked for clarification of how to access this information on 
the County network, at which time Ms. Sanders illustrated the steps to take on 
a computer in order to view this information on the County’s internal network.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti stated that he wanted to talk about opposing the bill 
regarding: “the list of exemptions from the tax base for the utilities 
classification of transaction privilege and use taxes is modified so that the 
exemption for the purchase price of electricity of natural gas by a business that 
is principally engaged in manufacturing or smelting operations and that uses 
at least 51% of the propane in the manufacturing or smelting operations no 
longer excludes gas transportation services.”  He stated that the larger cities 



Page 6 of 6 
 

would be impacted as a result of the change to include “manufacturing” 
operations and may want to oppose this bill as well.  Ms. Sanders clarified that 
the House Bill Supervisor Marcanti was referring to was HB 2025: utilities, TPT 
sale of propane.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti also expressed concern for legislation that may 
discontinue the use of two cameras on state highways, specifically, one in Star 
Valley on SR 260, and one in El Mirage on US 60, as he feels this provides a 
positive financial impact for Star Valley.  Ms. Sanders stated that this is not 
legislation that CSA is tracking at this time. 
 
Item 3 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
Item 4 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented.  
 
Chairman Pastor presented information on current events.  Supervisor 
Marcanti and Mr. McDaniel provided no comments at this time. 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:16 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board  



   
ARF-3652     Consent Agenda Item      3. Q.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/15/2016  
Reporting
Period:

February 19, 2016; and February 26, 2016

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks
Ending 02-19-16; and 02-26-16.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved
by the County Manager for the weeks of February 15, 2015, through
February 19, 2016; and, February 22, 2016, through February 26, 2016.

Attachments
Report for County Manager approved contracts for Weeks Ending
02-19-16, and 02-26-16
Service Agreement No. 011216-McSpadden Ford
Advertising and Marketing Agreement
Amendment No. 2-Kwik Kool
Amendment No. 1-Atwell, LLC
Amendment No. 1-Barkley Excavating LLC
Amendment No. 4-Globe Exterminators
Amendment No. 1-Earthquest Plumbing
Amendment No. 1-High Country Plumbing
Authorization to Utilize GSA Contract-Modular Solutions



  
Page 1 

 
  

 
COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
February 15, 2016 thru February 19, 2016 

Number/Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

011216 
McSpadden Ford 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

011216 
Repair Vehicle B-133 K-9 

Unit  

 

 
$3,386.39 

 
02-17-16 to 06-30-16 

 
02-17-16 

 
Expires 

 
Repair dent in driver’s side door.  Paint is 
peeling and needs complete paint on 
vehicle. Price includes new paint job for 
entire vehicle and repairs to the dent in 
the driver’s side door. 

 
Payson Roundup 

 

 
Advertising and Marketing 

Agreement 
  

 

 
$12,000.00 

 
03-01-16 to 02-28-17 

 
02-17-16 

 
Expires 

 
The Board of Supervisors wishes to 
provide effective external 
communication for the public relating to 
Gila County’s efforts for personal, family 
and community health and well-being. 
 

 

 

 

 

February 22, 2016 thru February 26, 2016 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

102714 
Kwik Kool Refrigeration 

 

 
Amendment No. 2 to 

Service Agreement No. 
102714 

HVAC Repair & 
Maintenance-Copper 

Region  
 

 

 
Increase 
contract 

amount of 
$4,500 by 

$5,000 for an 
amended 
contract 

amount of 
$9,500.00  

 

 
12-10-15 to 12-09-16 

 
02-23-16 

 
Option to renew for one 

additional one-year 
period 

 
Amendment No. 2 will serve  to increase 
the original contract amount of 
$4,500.00 by $5,000.00 for a new total 
contract amount of $9,500.00, for the 
remainder of the contract term.  Facilities 
wants a blanket Purchase Order with an 
HVAC company that can respond to 
heating and cooling problems in 
Southern Gila County.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
Page 2 

 
  

 

February 22, 2016 thru February 26, 2016 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

031215 
Atwell, LLC 

 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 
Professional Services 
Contract No. 031215 

Consulting Services for 
Landfills  

 

 

 
$40,000.00  

 

 
03-18-16 to 03-17-17 

 
02-23-16 

 
Option to renew for one 

additional one-year 
period 

 
Amendment No 1 will serve to extend 
the term of the contract from March 18, 
2016 to March 17, 2017. In addition 
Amendment No. 1 will serve to increase 
the original contract amount of $37,200 
by $2,800.00 for environmental 
consulting to be used, if needed and as 
requested, by Gila County. The 
Consultant will perform services on an as 
needed basis to support Russell Gulch 
Landfill, Buckhead Mesa Landfill and 
Dept. 433, the expansion of Russell Gulch 
landfill. Assignments may include 
financial assurance, Aquifer Protection 
Permit sampling, SWPPP sampling and 
reporting and Methane monitoring. 
 

 
123114-1 

Barkley Excavating, LLC 

 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 

Service Agreement No. 
123114-1 

Snow Removal for County 
Offices in Payson   

 

 

 
$2,000.00  

 

 
02-10-16 to 02-09-17 

 
02-23-16 

 
Option to renew for one 

additional one-year 
period 

 
Amendment No. 1 will serve to extend 
the term of the agreement from February 
10, 2016 to February 09, 2017. 
Contractor will provide snow removal 
when needed in parking lots of various 
County buildings in Payson.  

 
121014 

Globe Exterminators 

 

 
Amendment No. 4 to 

Service Agreement No. 
121014 

Pest Control Service for 
Southern Gila County 
Gila County Facilities 

 

 
Increase 
contract 

amount of 
$9,655 by $150 
for an amended 

contract 
amount of 
$9,805.00 

 

 
02-18-16 to 02-17-17 

 
02-23-16 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 4 will serve to extend 
the contract for an additional year and 
increase the revised contract amount of 
$9,655 by $150.00, to add the Woman’s 
Dorm, for a new contract total of 
$9,805.00. Globe Exterminators provides 
pest control service for various Southern 
Gila County Facilities. 
 

 

 

 

 

 



  
Page 3 

 
  

February 22, 2016 thru February 26, 2016 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

013115-1 
Earthquest Plumbing, 

Inc. 

 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 

Service Agreement No. 
013015-1 

Backflow Testing and 
Repairs 

Southern Gila County 
 

 

 
$5,000.00  

 

 
03-11-16 to 03-10-17 

 
02-23-16 

 
Option to renew for one 

additional one-year 
period 

 
Amendment No. 1 will serve to extend 
the term of the agreement from March 
11, 2016 to March 10, 2017. Contractor 
will provide annual backflow inspections, 
testing and repairs as needed at 15 
County Facilities in Southern Gila County. 
 

 
011116 

High Country Plumbing, 
Inc. 

 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 

Service Agreement No. 
011615 

Backflow Testing & Repairs 
Northern Gila County 

 

 

 
$1,900.00  

 

 
03-11-16 to 03-10-17 

 
02-23-16 

 
Option to renew for one 

additional one-year 
period 

 
Amendment No. 1 will serve to extend 
the term of the agreement from March 
11, 2016 to March 10, 2017. Contractor 
will provide annual inspections, testing 
and repairs as needed at 6 County 
Facilities in Northern Gila County. 
 

 
 

GSA #GS507F0199L 
Modular Solutions 

 

 
 

Authorization to Utilize a 
GSA Contract 

 

 
 

$18,410.85  
 

 
 

02-26-16 to 03-31-16 

 
 

02-25-16 

 
 

Expires 

 
 
Some time ago, Gila County purchased a 
modular building from Las Lomas school.  
It needs to be moved to the Fairgrounds 
for use by the Sheriff.  The modular 
building will be used as a 
classroom/training/meeting place for 
the Sheriff’s Office. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


















































	Agenda
	 Item 2.A. - Approval to Use State of Arizona Contract No. ADSPO13-054359 with Blackstone Security to provide security to the Payson Courthouse
	Att1_Contract Agreement Form April 2016 to April 2017
	Att2_Payson Courthouse Quote April 2016 to April 2017
	Att3_Contract Agreement Form Oct. 2015 to April 2016
	Att4_Payson Courthouse Quote Oct 2015 to April 2016
	Att5_Contract No. ADSPO13-054359 - Blackstone Security
	Att6_Amendment No. 1-ADSPO
	Page 1

	Att7_Amendment No. 2-ADSPO
	 Item 2.B. - Request to Advertise Invitation for Bid No. 021616-1 - Purchase up to Five New, Full Size, 4 Door, 4x4, SSVs
	Att1_Request to Advertise
	Att2_Invitation For Bid 021616-1
	 Item 2.C. - Citizen_s Petition to begin the process to designate Stageline Road and Singletree Lane as Primitive Roads.
	Att1_Petition
	Att2_Map
	Att3_Location Map
	 Item 2.D. - Public Sale for a portion of W. Cocopah Lane
	Att1_Acknowledgment and Notice of Sale
	 Item 2.E. - Public Sale for a portion of Elaine Way
	Att1_Notice of Sale
	 Item 2.F. - Approve Agreement No. 030116 for the Annual Yearling Auction_Sale Request for Equipment Assistance
	Att1_Agreement No. 030116-Gila County Cattle Growers Association
	Att2_Cattle Growers Request Letter
	Att3_Gila County Cattle Growers Association 501(c)5
	 Item 2.G. - Adoption of Resolution No. 16-03-01 Designating Randall Place as a Public Roadway
	Att1_Resolution No. 16-03-01
	Att2_Map 1934
	Att3_Map 1952
	 Item 2.H. - Approval of responses for the Survey  of Counties Land Management and Conditions 
	Att1_Survey-Gila County's Response
	 Item 2.I. - Sealed Bid for Purchase of Assessor's Parcel No. 206-10-104
	Att1_Information on 206-10-104
	Att2_Pictures and Map of 206-10-104
	 Item 3.A. - 4-H_FFA Application for Waiver of Fees for Use of Fairgrounds Facilities 2016
	Att1_4-H App 2016
	Att2_4-H Letter 2016
	Att3_4-H_FFA Fee Waiver App
	Att4_4-H Study Results
	Att5_4-H COI 2016
	Att6_FFA FG Use App 2016 
	Att7_FFA Fee Waiver Letter
	Att8_FFA Non Profit Proof
	Att9_County Attorney's Comments
	 Item 3.B. - Gila County Rodeo Committee Fee Waiver Request for Use of Fairgrounds
	Att1_Fairgrounds Use Application
	Att2_2016 Rodeo Fee Waiver App
	Att3_County Attorney's Comments
	 Item 3.C. - Fee Waiver Request for Use of Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall for the Globe High School Junior_Senior Prom
	Att1_Prom FG App 2016
	Att2_Prom Fee Waiver App 2016
	Att3_Prom Letter 2016
	Att4_Prom Layout 2016
	Att5_Prom W9 form 2016
	Att6_County Attorney Comments
	 Item 3.D. - Greater Grace Fellowship_Classic Celebrations County Payson Complex Grounds Use Request
	Att1_Greater Grace App 2016
	Att2_Greater Grace Letter 2016
	Att3_Greater Grace Liability Waiver
	Att4_Greater Grace Non Profit Proof 2016
	Att5_Greater Grace Letter 2
	Att6_County Attorney's Comment
	 Item 3.E. - Lion's Club Special Event Liquor License Application
	Att1_Lion's Club Special Event Liquor License Application 
	 Item 3.F. - Quit Claim Deed for the Sale of Assessor's Tax Parcel No. 206-22-073
	Att1_Quit Claim Deed 206-22-073
	 Item 3.G. - Quit Claim Deed for Sale of Assessor's Parcel No. 304-14-004-G
	Att1_Quit Claim Deed 304-14-004-G
	 Item 3.H. - Approval of Changes to Policy No. BOS-HRS-610 - Disciplinary Action
	Att1_BOS -HRS-610 Disciplinary Action 03-15-2016
	Att2_BOS -HRS-610 Disciplinary Action Correction
	 Item 3.I. - Approval of Changes to Policy No. BOS-HRS-625 - Personnel Commission
	Att1_BOS-HRS-625 Personnel Commission 03-15-2016
	Att2_BOS-HRS-625 Personnel Commission Corrections
	 Item 3.J. - Boards, Commissions and Committees Appointments and Reappointments
	Att1_GC Personnel Commission
	Att2_PSPRS Local Board
	Att3_CORP Local Board for Dispatchers
	Att4_CORP Local Board for Det. Officers and Non-Uniformed Officers
	Att5_CORP-Det. Officers 10-6-15 Minutes
	 Item 3.K. - January 2016
	Att1_Clerk of Court January 2016
	 Item 3.L. - February 2016
	Att1_Monthly Report for February 2016
	 Item 3.M. - January 2016
	Att1_Jan 2016 Report
	2016 jan treas.pdf
	jp0404 jan 2016

	 Item 3.N. - January 2016
	Att1_Payson Regional Constable's Office monthly report for January 2016
	 Item 3.O. - February 2016
	Att1_February 2016
	 Item 3.P. - February 23, 2016, March 1, 2016 and March 4, 2016
	Att1_03-04-16 BOS Meeting Minutes
	Att2_03-01-16 BOS Meeting Minutes
	FEBRUARY 2, 2016
	FEBRUARY 9, 2016
	FEBRUARY 16, 2016
	FEBRUARY 23, 2016


	Att3_02-23-16 BOS Meeting Minutes
	 Item 3.Q. - February 19, 2016_ and February 26, 2016
	Att1_Report for County Manager approved contracts for Weeks Ending 02-19-16, and 02-26-16
	Att2_Service Agreement No. 011216-McSpadden Ford
	Att3_Advertising and Marketing Agreement
	Att4_Amendment No. 2-Kwik Kool
	Att5_Amendment No. 1-Atwell, LLC
	Att6_Amendment No. 1-Barkley Excavating LLC
	Att7_Amendment No. 4-Globe Exterminators
	Att8_Amendment No. 1-Earthquest Plumbing
	Att9_Amendment No. 1-High Country Plumbing
	Att10ization to Utilize GSA Contract-Modular Solutions

